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A Well, I may say that I have seen hi1~1 have tl1e child, and 

the child has been at various tines broug11t down to the 8table not 

only by father but by myself, and lii ox has taken it on various ti1.1es .. 

At one tir.lJ I remember of his putting it oil the ponv, and several 

tir.'i.es ridding it around in the stable in the pony-vragon, and such 

things as that .. 

Q That is all. A (Volunteering) I thinlt I omitted Romething 

in going down to the stable in t e buggy. I do not kno :: nhether I 

have a right to tell it or not. 

MR. HARRIS: something Mox said ·to you? A something that 

Mox showed me. 

Q Did you observe his lips? A He rms crying and every 

now and then he had his handkerchief this way (indicating) I reckon 

to·:1ardD his lip, and I as~ed him what was the matter. 

Q st.ate 7hat you saw, t1hat you observed, as to the conration 

of' his mouth? A I can state that? 

Q Yes, sir. A He had, it looked like a bruise on his gum 

here. This lower lip had one little scratch in it on this side 

and a large one on this side, as if from a blow against his teeth. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY 1 H. COHH.AD: 

XQ It was a quarter to ten, if' I understand you, that you 

first sai7 Mox after Mr. Isaacs was killed, and the 1Jlace was down 

on Water Street near Charley Conrad.' s bar? A As near as I can 

come at it. It was about 20 mirn.ites or quarter of ten. 

XQ I think you said it ~as twenty minutes of ten when you 

were on the Square, and I was thinking it was about five minutes 

late1~ Yrhen you c9.me from tAie Square? 

me a minute. 

A I don't suppose it took 

XQ ~·111at time o:f the night was it the officers arrested him 

there on the street? A When they arrested him, so uewhere in the 
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neighborhood of eleven o'clock, probo.oly a fe ·, mirn.1tes after, or 

a few minutes before. 

XQ Between eleven and twelve? 

positively. 

A Not able to state that 

XQ There 7ere not very rll3.ny peo~le out on the street at that 

hour of the night r1ere there? A Well, I seen. some. I can't 

recall now who it uaR, but I believe it ms Mr. Loewner. 

XQ Who rras this that rnnt from Main street down to the stable 

ri th Hox, from the colonial building -- this yo tngrnan you called 

acros the street? J · _J11tter. 

XQ When you went to Doctor Davis's office ':7a 9 ox al orig vri th 

you? A Ho, sir. 

XQ You ca1i,e tP to Dr. Davis I s of'fice to ascertain Mr. Isaacs' s 

condition? A certainly; yes, sir. 

XQ You reported to Hox wher~ you 3:ot back that Doctor Davis 

said Isaacs was in a very serious condition? 

that. 

A I did not report 

XQ You did not report that? 

report as that. 

A I r~ici. not report any sucl1 

XQ Doctor Davis nirl not advise you the.t he 1:ms in a very 

serious condition? A He did not. I do not kllO'T.' i.'-.2.t iR mean-

ing rras. He dirl. not :put it in _those \7orc~s. 

XQ '/hat 'rnr:s did he pUt it in? A I called OVv::' the 'phone 

a1 r: talked to hir:-1 over the 'phone u.Jstairs. I t.olr~ hir.. v;ho ✓as 

dovn. t ere and skec.. l':in o~, a: he Hone t !er. Isa cs a. hurt? 

he to r: Le Ye coul(~ not f'inr,. a1,y frac U'es to nigl;t, 1 t he ':as 't 

able to r ut 

c~ You r.rcre ot o· good tern.ri r·it.h .r. Isacc, yourself·, 

were you? 

in r:ry life. 

A The be t in the ',''orld. never . ac a , ord r,i th him 

XQ On the night he ias killed, after yo1 got down to the 

to Web McGlaupJ1lin hi· t stable and Mox had stated tncn, he ha. Isaacs, you then said 
/\. 

1 + ,.,.,..,... "' 
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it W8. s a good thin2: for him, he ought to have beer: hit, he Waf1 

always butting in, diri.n 't you? A I ri.irl_ not, positively. 

XQ You did not, positively? A I positively dic'l. not 11qke 

that re!Jly. I can tell you "( .1.t I s'li0. to Vebb l'.cLaughlin. 

MR. LEE: I tl1ink it is prope1~ to let the 
witness 9tate 1.vh:it he rlid say. 

1 R. CO!TRAD: I ar!l asking thesd qu_ istions 
no"r. They cg_:r bring that out on 
crO::J'l-ex,=.v, ination if it is .!.Jroper. 

XQ You saw . eb McGlaughlin there at tl1e stable? 

I di<i.,11 t r,e, ]7 irn at the 8t8.ble. 

XQ You saT'.r hi1:1 on Water street? 

around the corner. 

A Yes, sir, I sav1 him 

XQ ¥hether at the corner or at the stabl ), or 1·:·ht1.t not, you 

83.Y you di'i. not say to him, after Mox had told cGlaughlin that 

he had hit Isaacs, that he ought to have be en hit tha: 1 e ;Ja8 

al\7ays butti1 g in? A I positively dirt not say that. I can give 

you my remark about that if you v1a11 t it. 

HR. LE3: Just state r1hat you did say. 

Objection; sustained; exception for accused. 

!,E!,10: Rece·~s taken 1ntil 1:45 P. M. 

AFTJ~RH OON- SES SI ON, Oct. 7, lGO9. 

MAXIMILIAN HIRSCH, examined in his oi:m behalf' by ![r. Lee: 

Q Mr. Hirsch, .,ro are the defendant in tllis Ci'tse, :1rt: you not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Ho ol 1 are you, Mr. Hirsc1 ? 

ei t"r1er t" irty-three or thirty-four. 

A I will not be po~itive, 

Q 

Q 

In what county v1 .re yo t born, ·1r. Hirsch? 

Have you lived here all of your life? A 

A Ro kin,2;ham. 

Yes, sir. 

Q You i_;vere born and re3.red here :::ind your !lhole life has been 

spent in H.ockins;·1arn county and the tovm of H rri."onb11rg amon~ our 

people? A Yes, sir. 





'' ... 

--203--

Q At what age, L1r. Hirsch, did you begin ,:;rork? A I guess, 

to the best of my recollection, something li!<.e eigrit or nine years. 

Q You were 0ne, I b,lieve, of a very large family of chilo.ren? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q A family of some ten children, I belieVH? A Yes, '3ir. 

Q You assisted in making a living for yourself and. fall ily? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q \V-n9. t has bcDn the condition of your health, Mr. Hirsch, 

for the last ten or t r,;elve years? A I have been a very sick an 

all .along there. 

Q Have you ever sustained any physical injury in your linbs 

or bones -- broken bones? A Yes, ·sir. 

Q Tell the Jury, if you please, sir, when yo1 received this 

first injury and where it uas, I uean, upon ,,n at .:.)art of your 

Person? A As near as I can rei;ol1dct, soneth ing about t vel ve or 

fifteen ye:-:1.rs qgo; I C"n't j11st recollect the yea;r; I was getting 

on a horse out here about the stone spring. It iR v:lrnre the Pike 

crosses the railroad -- the stau11ton :i.Jil<.e -- ;1hare th V'lll ,y rail­

road cro~ses the pi e, this rray a li ttl8 :Piece. I •1ent to get on 

the horse '.,i th .. unbrella in my hand, and I fell off anr broke 

both bones in this a.rm (indic3.ting rig" t arm). 

Q That rm.8 something nefU' 12 or 15 yeari:: ago_ when you broke 

both of the bones in your right 9.rm? A Yes, Rir. 

Q Tell the Jury y,-:, et. r t1.3.t arn wa.s vrnakened and has remained. 

weakened by that injury? 

work with it at all since. 

• A I have not been able to do any hard 

Q You have not been able to do any harn v1ork ·di th that arm 

since? A No, sir. 

Q Does that ar1. now at that 1Joint show the injury? A I 

thin.l\: anybody could tell it by the large lump right through there, 

( 1ndi ca ting ) • 

Q •rhe e is al(l1ot t,here, isn I t there? A Ye'3, sir t11ere is , 
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knnt t l1ere larger than oug11 t to be. 

Q And thnt -rras twelve or fifteen years ago t_ r3. t your right 

arm was broken as you have d.ei=;cribed? 

09.n recollect. 

A Yes, sir, as near as I 

Q Did yo 1 receive, either before or af'ter that time, any 

inju.ry to your other arm? A Yes, sir. 

Q When was that? A As near as I can recall it has been 

between three and five ye::1.rs 3.50.. something like tl1a t. 

Q Where was that injury, upon what Part of you1 .. arm? A VelJ., 

sir, if you notice you could see a knot sticking up there. It was 

broke there. I th ink it '.78.fl splintererl right here. 

Q The left arm :ms s:;_)lintered above the wrist and you broke 
at 

the bone at the wrist'"' the :point you have just indicated. to the 

A Yes, sir. ~ou can see it right here. 

Q '9ha t ha!=! been the effect of that injury upon the strength 

of that arm, ,Ir. Hirsch? A I have not been able to use that arm 

to any advantage at all. 

Q I woulcl like for you to tell the Jury what has been the 

character of the work which you have beo.n doing, sa_y, for t11e last 

eight or ten years? A I hav'n't clone no work at all -- helped to 

buy horses and bu.y ome cattle. 

Q I would like for you to tell t11e jury what sort of business 

you have been cond-1 ct ing? A Well, sir, I have been dealing in 

Q Yo1 have been dealing in horse8 and cqttle? A Yes, .sir. 

Q How long since you began to do that sort of work? A It 

has been about -- I guess along about sixteen years, as near as I 

can i--ecollect. 

Q My friend, Mr. Conrad, in his -opening Rta te1,tent, says you 

were a stalwart man, that your 1NOl"K wa handling he8.VY baggage, 

and yo,J. were a drayman and had been engaged in that sort of rrork; 

how long has it been since you have done any work of that cl1aracte:ir? 
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A I guess, to the best of my recollection -- I can't just 

recall exactly tl1e num,Jei· of years, but 9.nyhow sixteen or seventeen 

years. 

Q It has been ixt 1en or seventeen years since you have d.one 

any of that oort of rrnrk? A To the h _,t o:f ~r ecollection. 

Q As well as you recolle~t. I ur:derstand yo~1 cannot give 

the exact year, of' (;o,1x::::e? A Ye:J, ir. 

Q Did you s~y 16 or 17 yea~s, or 6 or 7 years? 

about 16 or 17 years. 

A I said 

Q \.' ell, rri thin the last six or :o;even years have you ci.one any 

worlc of that character, the lifting of heavy rn8.teJ::-ial or t:rain? 

A No, sir; no, sir, I hav 'n' t been able to lift anytl1ing at 

all to amount to anything f:"ot'.l tho.. t time. 

Q You.r business for 'l good n 1.m er of' years 11as been alr:1ost 

wholly confined to horf:it:: da3.lin.~ and c3.tt.l·3 b 1.ying? A Yes, sir. 

Q That neceBsi ta ted. your horseback rid.ine; a .c;oor'l. deal :--1.nd 

that SOTt of thing? A YeA, sir, principally. 

Q Wnen did you firGt kno,1 :r. Lou Isa cs? 

when t:t1 ey were married. 

A I knff7 hi:::i 

Q Had you ever met him before he m2r:ried your sinter? 

think I did. 

Q Hovr lon~ before? I do not nean in daYS or weeks. 

thing like six month8 bef'o:.::'e. 

Q Where r'J.ir-1 you meet hin, here? 

Q Sir? A .r.!et l1L!l right here. 

A Yes, sir. 

A I 

A SoJe-

Q i,fet him here ·:Vhe1 he •r::i..s visi ti-ng .ro·tr sister, I presume? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Yhere v,aa Hr. I aacs from; was he a resident O.L t:: i~ co tnty. 

or w1.s he from son1e other place? 

in Bal t ir::ore. 

A No, sir; I thin1<. his hone was 
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Q It has been stat eel, Hr. Hirsch, tl1a t ~ ou were opposed to 

your sister's 11arrying l!r. Isaacs, is that true? A Yes, sir. 

Q Without goin,z into detail, for I do not sup1;ose you "'OUld 

have a ri~ 11t to do_ that, just state gener::1lly why you .r Jre o:)::;osed 

to your sister marrying .1r. Isa 'lC ? 

he .ms a man that --

A 'ell, sir, I learned that 

l,R. CONRAD: I o'bject to that, sir. 

THE COURT: The qu.,stion is, WhaY he ·,7as 
o:P!Josed to t}10 marrig_ge? 

MR. L2E: They have brought that into 
evi,:~nce f'or the COlTi!-,,n,, eal th as 
tendi n~ to shm7 bad feeling on the 
part of this o m~nan, the n.efenrl.ant. 

MR. 

NO'i/, I take it, that ·1 1n•ot. er who 
loves his sister and has her iil t.erest 
at hea.rt, may, under c.ertain condi­
tions anrl. 1.1i t ri ce"l'.'tqin inf'o:tT.lA. tion, 
very i:iro)e:::-ly be o_JiJosed to her Harria 0 e 
to a given person. To let it go to 
tho J 1ry t·1a t e r1as opi:io sed to }1i 
sinter mrryi 1g this younsmar Isaacs, 
without permittini hin to 0 ive, not 
in detail but generally, the rea";on 
for his objection, would be unfair 
to him and to the Jury for they '.'rant 
to understan ~ t 1e re·'!oOn for his oP­
posi tion. 

I will put the 7-t Rtio1 i: 

form 

Q \Till you please be l{inn. enough to state to the Jury whether 

your op sit ion to yo1tr sister mar::.~ying hr. Isaacs -- I 1ant yo 1 

to tell the Jury 1nhether or not your opposition to his 1mrr iaz:e 

was based upon any 111-f'eeling, or ny unkincl feeling, which you 

had towards 1[r. Isaacs, or "!!3.S bac;ed 1pon yo,.,1r love and affection 

for your sister or upon your desire f'or her to iake what you would 

consider a good ~n~ proper marriage? 

ill-feclini towards hi 

A No, sir. I never hacl any 

Q Harl 3.l~Jt,1in occ rrer:l befo:re t:t1at, that 1.%uld have c tsed 

ill-feeling to':mrds hi :1 by you? A No, sir. 

Q 'l'han, aR I um.erstand you, you v1ere sirn.Jly op. 1osed to tl e 

ma 
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mai·:!.'i'lge r P-ca 1se of th., interest in your sister anrl. bec'-3. _c:e of the 

inf'ori .. 3.tion --ihic"r-i you har:i. recvived,and. v1hicJl hqr_ led ~'O'l to that 

honeRt conclusion, as her brother? A Yes, sir. 

Q N0'.7, I 'lOUld like you to tell t1le Jitry hO"'f S'Jon, if at all, 

after Mr. Isaacs m .r!'ir..-S. yo, ,... sister, you an 1 he becan e friends? 

A On the ni___,ht th<J.t they c•ui e hone fror.1 the ma.rria...,e, if I 

must say it, we took a drinlc together and rna-1.e up and it 'i7as all 

right. 

Q Then, whilG you d.iri. op-pose tnis marriage before it took 

place, as soon as it ·1a.c: consw --:'lted 1.nd your sister had talcen J1im 

for her husband, !'O an11. he shook hands and macte :friends and. took 

a d inlc together? A Ye~, sir. 

Q If I understand you, irm .. oo.ia tely 3.fter the vrndding yo, 

bec3.r:1e fri,3i.irls; no·-;, ho·1 lon1 di'1 you remain :frie1 ds? 

main en.. frienrls, to tl1e best of' my recollect ion, until last Ansust 

a year. 

Q You reP1ain8 . 0::1 friendly terms until last AugufJt a yt:}ar 

ac;o, t113. t ·.10:tlr'l_ be; August 1908? A Yes, sir. 

Q Well, at tl1a t time did you and he h ve so 11e d.iffere ce 

A Ye'3, sir, ve had fl 01r e little difference. I 

guess \,e had a little diffe:-encJ. 

Q Sir? A Yes, gir, -:1e had g_ little dif e::-ence. 

Q If' I underst1.nd, in Aug,rnt 1908 a dif'fere11ce aro, e b tween 

A Yes, sir. 

Q fas that o.if'f' ere nee ever 1111.rle 11.p? A Th~t difference? 

Q Yos, sir. A l.fo, '3ir. 

Q Then, af'ter August 1908 dir: yo 1 and he have anything to do 

with each other? A Ho, sir. 

Q Uot11ing. So that everythin~ t at exi ted bet 18en you in 
' 

the -;ay of difference gre-:, 01 t of' t:r B.t one occurrence? A Yes,sir. 

Q I would be g1a,1 if' you wo tlrl tell the Jury bri fly, but 
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-full' if' you choose, what occurred bet ve,.-:rn you and Hr. Isaacs in 

Au:,·ust 1908, vrhich c:1iw1:;d. t. e rlif'f'er1-n:c1~ of nhich you have spoken? 

A Well, the difference vrns c3.used this ~"iaY: on Sunday befort.: 

the t 1irrl l. ond.ay he c1ne <io•:n into our stable on Water street and 

took the horse and hooked up the buck-bo rd of' o ,...s, a ne.r buck­

board, ancl he took it aw-1y; anrL I as1(ed 1,7ho gave 1ir:1 permission to 

take it, a1(~ one of the~n S8.vs, 11Noboriy gave hir.'.l permission. 11 A!ld. 

\7hen he c·1me b1.ck I a, kcd him, "Lou, 11 I says, "who 3:ave yo-~:i. .9er-

mi RS ion to tal(e that buck-board avr2Y f':ro1.1 here, I own it? 11 He spoke 

up and said, "What you got to do vrith it? 11 I says, 11It br➔longs to 

us. I have the rigl1t to ask you.'' He s1.ys, "I have as much right 

to do wi tl1 it as you hs.ve, 11 he says, 11r m:ir:ried in the family. 11 

I says, 11You hav'n't nothing to do 1;;ith it at all. 11 so he got r:ad 

at that and grabbed 8. piece of iron baok tn re and ma.de at me and 

I ran. A piece of iron, I thinl~ it 1:ras a Piece of lever of':f a 

brake from a two-horse wagon. 

Q Did that end the trouble at that time? A I ran o:tt the 

door. Do you "Tant me to tell .iJlo stoppe,1 us or anything? 

Q no, I do not kno·c1· t:1.at it is .eces·.··:.:ry, unless 1 friend 

on the other sine , ants it. I ara tryin 6 +,o show briefly the nature 

of tl10 oc-;urrence. A I ran out in the street f:::-orn t t~ stable, 

ani he followed r.1e and would have hit me but "':.9.9 stopped. That '.1as 

the last of the fight. 

Q Did you anrl he ever speak f'rou that ti 1 e on? A Th:it tine 

on? 

Q Yes, sir. A I don't thinl\. vre <'lid; no, sir. 

Q You do not think you did? A No, s:ix -- I l~n0':7 we never. 

Q No, it has been state~ that on several occasions you had 

nade some threats, some ugly remarks about him, "if he 03.me in your 

house you '"fould kill him, 11 or vrords to that effect. want to 
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direct your attention to one of tl1ose oc.c :--,ions sPoken of by a wit­

ness on the stand -- Mr. SPiro -- anr:·1_ I want YO't to tell the Jury 

1hether or not one of those threats, o:r so-called threats, S}X)l(en 

of by th ·,7i tness, grew out of' anything that {r. Isaacs had 1::3.id or 

done to your wife as re:;orteci. to yon; I do not me·1n what you saw 

but •1ha t may riave been reportc1 to . ou? A Yes, sir. 

Q Tell the jury what that was? A Well, me and. ey nife 

al'.':2ys cm.1e down the street on Saturd·1y eveni1 g and she n ade her 

heac,quarters at Abel Mil:...er' s sto e over here and stai0 .. there until 

I got there and we Hent riome together. I ·rnnt up there one P,Vening, 

my wife told me that !{r. Isaac'3 ll'ld.1~ an 3.ssault on her. I askerl her 

what it ,ms, arrt she said he had threatened to run his ciamn fist 
teeth and 

cJ.own her throat a1111.. jerk her,...tongue out. I S'li'i, "Well, If I had 

been there maybe I 7ould have helped him; I would have hit him. 11 

Q It had been reported by your v:ife thr-1.t he had been guilty 

o:f that sort of conduct towarci.s 1:er? A Yes, sir. 

Q And it angeret4. you and. you made thqt r;ort of remark? A Yes, 

air. 

Q r r. Hirsch, tell the jnry "vhether 02.."' not at any time you 

ever bore about your person any weapon of any sort, kind or o.escrip-

tion? A No, sir, I never c'"'.rried a revolver in my life. 

Q You have never carried any sort of '-reapon? A Ho, sir. 

Only t 1ing I c·1.rrierl ··: .... B a s!!!.all pocket knife sometir..es. 

Q Mr. Hirsch, so:-t1, ,r1onan on the ·.1itness-stand, I have fore;ot­

te11 her na .1e,-- it see s she was rrursing for you1· sist .,r -- nui"'cin 

little Hiriam, stated tl1at on the afternoon of the tragedy, 1:,hile 

she was sitting on the porch rith this little child, r:hich was 

crying, yo 1 rode by on horse-back and that she said "There co:ue8 

, 0·1.r Uncle Uox," and that yo said, 11Don' t tell t 1at damn brat to 

call me 'Uncle'-- I llave no use for it or any of the cro rd; 11 tell 

tlle Jury whether you Jade any such statement as that? A Well, 

sir, I rms iding in from the farm on a horse and roii.e by 1. 1e 110 se 
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and she told the child to say, "Hello, Mox. 11 I uaiverl my ,and and 

said 11Hello 11• I thinl~ I called it l)y TI'lme, anc1. rode on by ancl 

neveI· thou:. t of anything, just rode on to the stable. 

Q Ho 7 old is th'-lt little child? A Now? 

Q HOVI old Via '3 the chilrl then an1 nov:? A Best of cy jucg-

ment I think it r:ust be 16 or 17 months old. I don't k.nmr a:mctly. 

Q I w1.nt yo•-1. to tell the Jury 111hat your feelines have ali.:rays 

been towards that little chilci anr'_ l1ow yo11 . ave tre':lte,1 that child? 

A Vell, sir, I loVeQ it. 

Q Did ou ever come in contact with the li ttl0 one? 

than once. 

Q 1\'here? A In tht3 stable. 

Q I::1 the stable? A Ye::, sir. 

A lore 

Q And the :10·...1.88 in ··.·'1ic1'1 tri i!3 little one lives is quite neal' 

the Gt'lble? A Yes, sir; second house fro1~ the stable. 

Q Tell the Jury vrnether or not that 11 ttle child was frequently 

at the stable? A Yes, sir. Do·:·11 t:-10re '1..t an averawe of, I guess, 

anyhow four to five ti1,1es a ueek. 

Q Did other little children in the nei~:;J-1borhood come to the 

stable? A Yes, sir. 

Q Have you any ponies there? 

a vihi te. 

Q You have a black pony and 

Q Tell the JUI'Y wi1ether YOU 

amuse this little c_1ild by ricUn
0 

in any pony-c J.rt? A Every time 

A Yes, sir, a black pony and 

a YT.1ite POIT'J? A Yes, sir. 

t:V8l' undertoo1" to intereRt or 

it on the back of any pomr or 

i , was there. The stable was 

bieger than this room, -- anyway as big. 

Q '.rhere '.vas a big gang"ray in it? A Yes, sir. we would 

dri~c all around in a couple of minutes time while the pony na 

th~e, ·--nd sometimes I would take her riding, especially on Sunday-. 

Q Have yo any child of your own? A Have I any? 
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Q Yes, sir. A I dirt have one. 

Q You did have a little child of your o':rn? A Yes, sir. 

A six-months child. It ctiect. 

Q I see. It was dead w11en born. You have never hac~ · ny liv-

ing child? A No, sir. 

Q ,fr. Hirsc 1, ,:,here }13.d you been on t}10 evening of the day 

of' this trouble? A I had been to the syna ogue. 

Q Had you spe1 t thB.t day in to:m or had you bee out of tOitn? 

A I had been o .t of tom. 

Q rhere had you been? A I '1arl be8n out to the f'arm boss-

ing a f'e 1 hands, wl1ore the· were ".:!leaning o t a pond. 

Q What tirne n.irl you get in the Oi ty, I mean, sir, tl1a t even-

ing? A After six o'cloc(. I did not leave the farm tntil after 

the 1histle blew six. 

Q The whistle l1ad blov111, you. mean at the t9.11..r1ery? 

whistle. 

A some 

Q It whistled for six o'clock v1hen you left the farrn? 

A Y0s, sir. 

Q How fg_r is your farm from Harri8onburg? A I sho ld jn ge 

a strong nile, maybe little ovc_. 

Q Then, yo 2:ot in here somethinz after six o'clock? A Yes, 

sir. 

Q Where did you go v1hen you c-=:_rn.e home? A Ven-':. to the 

st ble and put the horse up there,-- told the 1l.lan to put it away, I 

tied it to a post. I clganed rrvself off q little bit,--I had a 

lit vle 1. ti on my sJ1oes, -- and came up to the ouse and ate su:pper 

an-:l ch:1.nged r.ry clothes and 1:rnnt to church. 

You nent to ch'..trcl'.? A Ye8, ir. Q 

Q Well, af er you left church where did you ~o; wl10 came fro 

church with yo? A Leon, Papa and !1e 03.1,e :from church. 

Q Where d.i'i you and your fa thei· and Leon separate? A As 

ne:J.r as I can recollect, Papa went in John Sullivan's to get so :'e 
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Q A2Yl 1••1here d.ici you and. Leon thei: go? A we '.'lalk ed on dorm 

to the stable. 

Q Walked on do1'rn to the stable? A Yes, sir. 

Q Did yo separate at the stable, or not? A W' o do you 

mean? 

Q You and Leon? A I thinl< 'rre .i , if' I a int mistaken. 

Q '/hat stre,-t is yrr st8.ble on? A On Water Street. 

Q On water st eet, ne'.:U' the corner of German street? A Yes, 

sir. 

Q This was on July 29th, ~ims it not? 

Q That pretty warm weather or not? 

very hot. 

A I think it 1:ms. 

A Yes, sir, it was 

Q n·d you have your CO'lt on afte:i:- you left church or not? 

A Yes, sj_r, I :iad it on, but I talcen it off after I lef't the 

chu.r(!h. 

Q You t.Jok it off how soon after you le:ft ch rch? A As 

ne2..r as I recollect, I talcen it off so1,1e 9lace along do'l'",m this 
or 

street, dovm near the corner, I disrB1:ei,ber v1hich it '.7as. 
I' 

Q Wa it n-hile you ' .. ere still with yo r fat~.er and Leon that 

you took your coat off? A I think so -- not sure. 

Q 1'/ha t did you d.o v7i th it after taking it off? A Had it 

hung over my left arn 

Q Afte:r you. separated f::'or:i. our fg_thcr and Leon where ms it 

your purpose to uo? A I P ade arrangei:ient to go u,;,:> to see cy 

cousin who ·:ms going m.1a.Y tl1e next E1orning. 

Q 'lhere does she live? A She lived in Bal tir:1orP-, b 1t she 

was visiting on corn~r of West Market ~d Hi-~ strAets, on top of 
tl1, ... '1ill. 

Q She was going to leave town the next mo ning? A Yes, sir. 
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Did she live here or 11ert; on 3. Visit? 

Where docs she live? A Bal tirnore. 

A Visiting. 

Q Your cousin from Bal t ii;1ore harl be0n on 2 visit here and 

you 1.·.rere going ud there to tell her goo-bye? A Yes, sir. 

Q What would be the uRual route f'or you to take from yo 1r 

stable to her house? A The usual way -- you mean the nearest way? 

Q Not neccgsarily t11e nearest 718Y, but the usual '.7aY? A The 

way I alv,ays go, I nent around Ger,1a1: street. 

Q You c3_me up to German street f'rom the stable and then go 

Nor th? A Yes , sir. 

Q You :10·0.1 1:. :;o uJ Ge1·u.an street nrr'l. then yo '7ould turn -

A Up \lest Harkat street. 

Q Was that t11e route you took tha.t night as far as you tra­

versed it? A Yes, Gir. 

Q Well, wrien_d.id you first meet and where did you first meet, 

as near as you can state, your 8ister anti. r. Isaacs that -night v1l1en 

you were on your ,~ray to visit yo•,.r cousin? A As I was 1alking 

leisurely dO":m the street my si ste1" stopped me and asked e if I 

Q !here ''l1.8 tha tr A On German street about ,ihere a couple 

of :feet this sirle of' 1:1here tn.ey live. 

Q You mean south? A Yes, n~r. 

Q It 1awened a fe•n feet south of' the st~ps to her house? 

A Yes, !3ir. 

Q Wow, Mr. Hirsch, in yo1r o,;m 1t78Y, sii:rply tell the Jury what 

v,as said and ·,hat Jas done,-- 7h'lt transpired when you met yo tr 

sinter and her husband at th~t time? A My siRte1· asker.1_ r:ie if' I 

Jv1d s:=tid anything 1gly about her baby. I sa.icl, no, I l1adn't said 

a thing 

THE COURT: Talk louder. 

WIT:iJE'3S: I said, no' I har 1.n It said a thing. 

Q Just go ahead, wi tho i_t bein qi.rn f:'ltionerj_ by me, and tell 

the Jury · hat ha::i/;;ened. A And Lou Isaacs said, "Yos, you clid," 
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just t 118.t ·.7'1Y. I sa iti., 11Go away, Lou, I don't want to have any 
i i t.1 "' ou open 

troubl~ 1 and tl1re-.'! my hand up tl 1. t ·. ay -- rw r.J..g-1t hand. He iHS 
on. the left hand; she was standing 

standing next to the house an-:l I ·1as st1nd.ing next to the curb 
I\ 

when I saicl 11Go .21.11.y, I 1.on' t 'irant to have 8.l y tro ble. n I'!. looked 

son of a bitch and I am going to kill you, too. 11 By that he made 

at me and kept -it me '!Tith hi'3 fists, hitting me all the time all 

the r1aY up. 

Q Did he stri};:~ you nhen he !.ca.r::.e at ym.t? A Yes, sir. 

Q rfi ere n..icl he strike you? 

here, ( lndic tin • ) 

A struclc lie so -1e Place alon~ 

Q In the H10'J.th? A Yes, sir. It bled a little. 

Q Vlhat elGe ,:.1.i(t he do after striking you on the mo 1.th? 

A He kept on '3triking. 

Q VJha t did. you do? A I kept backing buck up the hill, UP 

the pavement. 

Q Did you see Hrs .. Artll 1r Hirsch? A I did not se ~ ~.rs. 

Arthur Hirsch, while this trouble was goi· g on. 

Q Did not see her? A Did not see her until I got up there. 

311e ran bet~\' .;en us when ve 'Iere almost in f2.0 6nt of her 110 me '!here 

there vm.:.1 a pile of refuse lur.iber. 

Q She says you struclc her, tell the Jury v1hetl1cr yo,J.. a.id 

strike her? A No, ~ir. When he came at me he knoclced her dovm. 

Q NoH, it has be~il ta ten. that you threvr q rock or a piece 

of Plank that trnck the house there A I don't SaY I did tot, 

aiYl I r'J.on't say I did. I may have done it. 

Q You m3.y have done it? A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you u11dortr,tke to throw anyt 11inc; or to a.o anytr1ing until 

you ~ere strtck in the face? 

thing. 

A No, sir, I never thought o-P any 

Q Gan yo J.. tel the Jury 1<1hen you picked up that piecd of plank? 

A No, sir. 
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Q Diel you h:=?Ve any plan· in yon.1' h~ncl at the time you ·rnre 

struck? A vr11a t do you mean. 

Q Diri. you have any plan.1-- in your hand 'lt the tine you vrere 

struck in the face· by I. 1~. Isaacs? A Ha not11ing but Y;.W coat on 

my arn. 

Q You har.1. yo· . .tr coat on your arm and nothing in your hand? 

A Ho, sir. 

Q When Mr. Isaacs marle t yo vrnre you in tl1e neighborhood 

of this pile of lunber? A You ~ean first? 

Q Y~s, sir. A Mo, sir, I ,:ras do·-rn next to his place. 

Q Hext to his place? A Yes, . ir. 

• Q How soon did you get upon the-} lnmb0.r lJile? A He drove 

me back up there. 

Q Diel you, or not, go over the 1 unber pile or through the 

edge of it? 

it. 

A Yes, sir; he hit me 'Uli I thinl-:. knoc~l~ed. me over 

Q You did, fin11. lly, in SOJ. e ·,1a et that piece of plank i.L 

your hand, did. y OI.l? 

Q The diITic tl ty, I understand, began on tJ1e sidew3.lk, on 

the east side? Yes, sir; on the rig 1 .thanri. side 3:oi -...6 Horth. 

Q on the righthg_nd side of the street s;oing 1Iortl1? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q At the tir. e you struck Mr. Isaacs with the plank -- co:·1:0ose 

yourself 1·r. Hirsch. It is ·a severe ordeal, I ls.nOYi. At the tir, e 

when yo t finally str. ck thi blo·.-; .hi.ch killed. . r. Isaacs were you 

close to the side o~ the sidewalk in f~ont of his house or on the 

OlJ)OSi te side. 

Q I was over on the side next to Mr. Uye:rs' s. 

Q over on tlie side of ·. r. Myers? 

A Yes, nir. 
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Q You vrnnt with the Jury and 3.l l of ,rn to the scene of the 

tragedy tl1e otI1er d1Y, rUrl you not? A Sir? 

Q You were with us t e other day, the Jury and all of us, 

do1;rn to the place of the ct.ifficul ty? A Yes, sir. 

Q Did 1 ou see 'I."here t:!1e suprJo sert body of' the deacl may 7as 

located? A Yeq, sir, I t'1i 1k I clirl. 

Q was ths. t where it via~? 

knov1led
0

e it 1.1as. 

A Yes, sir, to the best of EV 

Q As near a~ you cg_n come to it that is nhere you TTere? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Mr. Hirscl1, tell the JUI'Y w1-ie tJler or not .1·0'.l fol2-o !'led Mr. 

Isaacs over to that point or whether he f'ollowed you over there? 

A He :follo•:1er'i. me all tl1 ·1a.y over t,here. I was backing all 

the ·:;,ay fror.1 hir.1. 

Q Why did you strike him vli t."i1 the I1l:1.11k, Hr. Hirsch? A 

Because I was in danger af'r'lid he was going to kill me. 

Q When you strt c1c him Vii t.1 the Plan.1< did. you have any inten-

tion of doing hir1 great bod.ily harm or of' killing him? 

never had the lea':lt bit of idea. 

A :ro, sir, 

Q The deputy sheriff was on the 1i tness-stanrl to-d.a,y and 

stat en. t,lu t on the nig"lt of this trouble he had spent part of the 

night in your room and that about six o 1cloc i:. in the morning ,hen 

you uoke up he h.acl a conversation ·.7ith y JU in .1hich you toJ d him 

that you v:erc on your v,9.y home fror.. church and that you 1uere cool 

and not the least bit excited; he says that he construcn. tt1-1t to 

mean that you were not the least bit excited while you were in ti1e 

fight; tell the Jury, if :ro--t _ple·1~e, sir, ~'lh3.t you did mean? 

A I meant that I ·ras not the le:lst excited. I meant that. 

·.O{. SIPE: What? I cannot hear. Repeat 
it. 

WITNEPS: I meant that I ~2s just as cool 
when I v1alked. dor:n there ta·,mrrt. □ t::1em 
as I am now. 
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Q Diel you mean to hav0 him infer that you 1ere perfectly co->l 

"Jhile tl1is fight W'3.G going on, that you '.Vere not tlrn least bit ex-

cit cd? A No, sir, I was v0rt excited. 

Q Vhe n you left the stable, going to see ymu· cousin, and 

walked north on German street, tell tlle Jury 'fheth~r or not you 

had any idea of hs. vinr; any trouble ;-:i th any one'i A No, sir, I 

never tho· .3'-'lt of havin~ any trouble at all. Neve1 dreamt f -

neve1" dreamt of' ever even coming in contact 71 th either one of them; 

never thou;ht of suc11 &. thing. 

Q Hr. Hirsch, after this blow had been stricken and Hr. 

Isaacs had fallen, tell the Jury 11,rheth,::rr· yon saw your f3.ther was 

ministering to him? A Say that over again, please, sir. 

Q After this Lan h:id f1.llen :f:.--om tr1e blow struck, did you 

see yo :tr f'athei-- so to him? A No, sir. 

Q You did not s0e 1111.1 e;o to hir.1? A no, sir. 

Q Did you see your fa the2· there 1:ri th him before you left the 

spot? A ·I thiTl. I 'iid. 

Q Did you see your father about there before the blow was 

struck? A You mean while he ·,me nfter me? 

Q Yes. A Ho, sir, I never sa 'T }1im. 

Q You did not see your father there at all --( A No, 8ir. )-

until a·fter t.he blow waf3 struck? A No, sir. 

Q Now, a good c:a.-1 has been said abo•:i.t r1here you nent after 

the occurrence took :place; tell tlle Jury whether or ot you Made 

any effort of any sort to run a11ay or esc .i_:pe? A I never ilad the 

least bit of idea. I ilad Plenty of chances to get aw~ if I wanted 

to. 

Q And you v;,~-;:e on ~-ain street at the time the of'ficers tooK 

charge of you? A Yes, sir. 

Q About what tir.10 of the nigl1t m.13 that? A I sup1iosc, best 

of n:y jud.gnent -- I never h:-3.d no '!latch with m~ -- I think it was 

bet\1een eleven a:r cl tvrnl ve to the best of' my judgment. 
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Q Yoa i•ere on the ma.in street of t'1e City in com:93_ny 1'1i th Mr. 

Harmuer and your brother Leon, I believe, '.111en that occurred? 

sir. 

A Yes, 

Q Hr. Hirsch, two :ri tnes es, whose ru.-:,.mes I do not rec~ 11 -- Hy 

mer:i.ory for n3.mes is not very good -- sPeaking on the ·1i tness stand, 

said that shortly after thL:, trouble toolc place th .,y sa IV you do';·m 

about tht! tannery tnere, some-,"lhere about tJ1e allc.,,y by the tannery 

where t 10 scales are, and asked you 9.bon t it and you said th•.-t your 

brother-in-law harl juupecl oi you and you had knocked hell out of 

him as any other 1..1an woulo~ have done; did you know at that time 

your brother-in-1'1··, ·.1as fatally hurt? A no, sir. 

Q Diel you kno·;1 at tl1a t tire that he \7as dan 0 erously hurt'? 

A no, sir. 

Q at rlid you think his condition 1:rns 1hen you na.de that 

remark? A I thought prob:, uly he had ,2;ot a blow th 9. t maybe knocked. 

the breath out of hin 

Q And that vas all? A Yes, sir. 

cmos0-EX:J.1IHATI 0:1 :SY 1rn. CONRAD: 

XQ Yo 1 say that when you told Mr. crousel1orn that you ,;;ere 

just as cool as at the moment you were talking to him that you 

ref~r.ced to yo 1r :feelings at tht., ti1.1e you met Iso.acs, I believe? 

A I said when I fi st met t em. 

XQ That your rewark to Mr. crousehorn about ~ro1u' bein:::, per­

fectly cool re:ferre-l to your :fP-elings or our condition v111e-1 you 

:first met them? A Ye::i, sir. 

XQ 11/hy 'i7'1S there any reason or occasion :fa1-- you to tell Hr. 

crousehorn you were cool at that par·ticnl'U' moment or not excited 

at th.at moment? A Because I '7as walking down the street cool 

a 1d I r e·-·er thou3ht of anything. 

XQ '!fhY was there any occasion for you to exPlain to hi11 that 

you were ot excited? A Bec~use I TTasn't. 
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XQ Before the difficul,ty corm:.'lenc ed? A I 1.vanted. him to know 

I wasn't I.'.1--::tcl Yli th them or ariything when I went down tov1ards him, that 

I h:i'i no idea of ever co.ming in contact :::>t all -rith him. 

XQ But the langua 6 e you used wasn't th~t you wclre not mad Vihen 

you met tl1em but tl1at you were not excited? 

a bit when I met them d0 1-:n there; yes_, sir, 

A I wasn't excited 

XQ Well, did you say that you struc - Mr. Isaacs because you 

thougr:t you· i;rere in d3_nger of being kilJ.ed? A Yes, I was afraid 

o:r him. He macle that remark, that he was going to kil:::. ::ie. 

XQ Right in f:!'or.t of your fatlrnr I s house, that hour in tlie 

evening, people all around there -- A (Interrupting) No, sil,, I 

don't thinl( there were anybody aI'ound there. 

XQ You 11ad obsei~ved that your !Jisters and two gentlemen were 

sitting on the porch; ti1ey were there vrhen you passed your home; 

hadn't you? A Yes, !3ir, they ,ere there. 

XQ And. they were not more than twenty-five feet, if' that 

much, fro:r-1 ·.rhere yo 11it Mr. Isaacs? 

ho1.11 far it is aero ss over there. 

A I ·don I t know just exactly 

XQ It w0 s j 1st out diagonally across from t}1e :9orch, ri~11t 

out in the road? A Down this v1ay in t1rn road. 

XQ So there 111ere two men within twenty-five feet of where 

you were? A No, sir, I don't think they coulcl have seen me for 

the grape vines. 

XQ vrnether they could see you or not they were within easy 

calling distance if he had gotten on top o:r. you? 

excited I did not think abo1t it. 

A I was so 

XQ And he had had an equal op:portuni ty to pick up a board or 

Plank or block as he carne over the lumber pile as you did, didn I t_ he? 

A I don't know :Thether he dicl or not, he had enough muscle 

and bodily strength ,J"i tho t it. 

XQ You say you vere defending yourself' and that he was strik-
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ing you 3.Jl tr1e time and yet you ha_ t.irne to pick up a rock and 

throv1 it and to piclc up a boarr:, too, rtidn 't you? A I t4.idn 't 

say I I didn't say whether Ificked it up -- I don't know whether I 

picked it up. 

XQ If he rns pursuing you .from the very moment he f'irst struck 

at you until the moment you hit him and knocked h in dovm, you 1mtst 

have pick en_ up the rock and board between those times some'!lhere, 

mustn't you? You much have picked them up 

of lumber and out in the road somew. ere. 

A Between the pile 

XQ You thre':7 the roc!t before you left the lumber pile? 

A I do not know. 

XQ You don't re1:iember? A I don't k O'!l. I didn't say I did. 

XQ The fact i8 you threw the rock before Lou Isaacs hit you, 

did.rt I t you? A no; no, sir. 

XQ Did you pick the rock and the board up at the sar e time, 

or did you stop and picl' the rock up at one tir.'le and pick •~the board 

u:;_J at another time? A I said I IllaY have thrown a ~tick or rock 

but I don't recollect where I picked it up at, that is what I :=;aid, 

air. 

XQ You don't know whether you sto~pAd down twice or once? 

A I know I wasn't off the pavement from the time he got after 

me until vre got up in the lumber pile. 

XQ At the time he got after you with this poker,-- not poker 

but with the rod of iron -- you got aw2y from him and didn't get 

hurt, dir 111 t you? A Yes, sir, I ran away fro1 him. 

XQ coulcln 't you jnst as easily have run array :fro 1 him, without 

being hurt, wl1en he had no iron or sticl<. in his hand? A How is 

thatl 

XQ coulcln 't you j 1.st as easily run away :from him, in that 

street, wht:n he had no rod of iron or anything in his hand at all? 

A I was getting away ± ... rom him as fast as I coulc1-, sir. 
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XQ Vell, the only scar that. as left on your 9erson from the 

licks he gave you ras the plac:J her, on your mouth, vras it? 

Places, here ani here, (indicating). 

A Two 

XQ Two places there on ymu· r.1onth, one on the lower ana. the 

other on the up9er- lip? A Yes, sir. 

XQ Anet ·JO th on tJ1u ri~h thand siri.e on your face? A Bo h 

these are on r y face. He hit me over tllt":) breast a1 d e_very where 

goirG UJ the paveaent. 

XQ You ~-!ere not ev Jn knocked rl.mr1 by any of these? A Yes,sir. 

'.XQ You vrere knockert. <lo'.7n? A Yes, sir. 

xq You. s8..id not in~ :l.bo 1t that awhile ·=i.go? A I Raid he 

knocked ue aero ss the lumber pile, i:" I al! not :;ct.sta}rnn. 

XQ '!hen you say e knocknrl you a .ros~ the lutber pile, did 

he knock you flat aero. s the lunber pile? 

a staggering -...vay; yes, si:c. 

A Knocked rne over in 

XQ Abo·1 t 11011v high from the ground. 1 as this lit .le pile? 

has been couple of rronths and I have fo ~otten,I imagi1e --

A It 

XQ These picture (exl1ioiting }.Jictur13s) correctly repre::ient, 

do they, tht: co ·t:::. n of t e trash? It uas not really a lu .. ber 

pile? A A .:_Jile of ref'use stuff', about a foot high. 

XQ Sor:1e person said t13.t it 03.r.e out of where they had been 

repairing a room: it vmsn 't a PiltJ o:f lur:1ber in the sense o:f b Jing 

a pile of Plank, 1.1a" it? A It was a )ile of scrap luuber about 

a foot high, 9.!1 1:rnlJ. as I recollect. 

XQ You say th:it when yo·.1 m de this rem:irl<. to tnose men about 

the tannery, about :::.;_vin.~ knoc1(. n h__..11 oitt of that brother-in-law 

of' yours you thought that Isa_.cs had be ,n just kno~ker'l. down and 

the breat_ knocked out of him, or something of the kind? A Yes, sir. 

XQ And. though you thought you hari only knocked. the bre' th 

put o:f him you expressed it 1)y sayi g you ~nocken_ hell out of him"? 

A I don't kno1.7 .vh eth __,r I saicL that or not. I may il!tR!i. or I 
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may not. I wont say 11Yee" or 11uo 11• I was excited and nervous. · 

XQ Mr. Lee ask,3d you whether you ha __ any idea of trying to 

escg_pe. He did not ask you how you happened to be over there at 

tlrn other end of the tannery :9roperty, at that bar!<, shed. You 

did go there? A Yes, sir, I walked over there. 

XQ You did come u:9 f:ro .. t:1ere, as Hr. Loewner says, and asked 

hir.1 to send word baclc to yo 1 -- to get somebocy to co:11e rlo'1n and. 

tell you how Isaacs was getti1~ along? A Yes, sir. 

XQ You kl1G'7 that there 1:rere telephone lines running all over 

Hockingha..rn and the adjoining counties? 

to get away at all. I never tried. 

all the time. 

A Yes, sir. I never tried 

I walked over there, crying 

XQ You have travelled all over RocJringl1am co,mty and adjoin-

ing cOLtnties, have you not? 

XQ And you kne,_,-., t1J.a t telephone lines run al-1 over Rockingham 

and the adjoining counties, didn't you? A yes, sir. 

XQ Did you sg_y th.at the only tl1ing that you had against 

Isaacs was the f9.ct that he hart talrnn your buclc-board and drove 

it on one occasion? A After we made up over the marriage; yes, 

sir. 

XQ, The only thing that hA.:PPened af'ter -- between the time 

of the marriage and the time that he 1.'ias killed, 'that you could 

feel any ill-:reeling toward him at all,. ·w·as that he got the buck-

board? A Nev-er had any ill-feeling. I never s::;>oke to him from 

the time of the buck-board on u:p. 

XQ You never spoke to him? A No, sir. 

XQ Did you have any reason to have any bad feeling against 

him at all aft er that, except f'rom the buck-board incident? A No, 
• 

sir. 

XQ Except from the buck-board? A No, sir. 
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XQ You did not? A Only when he made that threat torrards 

my wife. 

XQ Then you did l1ave so1tlethi1 e; besides the buck-board! You 

say you got mad about that, did you? 

XQ It llar'I. been reporter1. to you by your r.-1ife, yo l. say, tl1a t 

he said he was going to push his fist do7:n her throat or knock her 

teeth do;1n her tl1roat, or Ro 1ething like that? 

that effect. 

A something to 

XQ HO'V lon,.;, ac:,o '78,S that? A sometioe l~st ,inter,-- I 

can't recollect. 

XQ Sornetiue last vint,er? A To th ·J best of L knowledge --

I don't know, ex1.ctly. 

XQ When th3. t vras reiJorted. to you by your wife you m·::2.''li~ tho 

remark that you 1:muld have done v1hat? A I ,1oulcl have hit hirn.; I 

would have done something to him. 

XQ Well, you had. not been on ~ood termR 'Ti th your Rinter, 

either, during all of' t11is time? Did yo1 _top speaking to her 

beca !:le Lou had taken the buck-board? 

Objection; question unans'.7ered. 

XQ I will ask 7,rou tlli : d.irl you tell your sister, if yo~1 

eve:r caught her spending any of' your 1 oney for Isaacs yo·.i . oulr1 

make <::hort :mrk of both of them? 

not. 

A No, siree, I positively did 

XQ You did not tell her anytr1ing 111<:o tllat? A No, siree. 

XQ o she 18 mistaken when she says you ma e any such re1:iark 

as that to her? 

to her. 

A No, sir, I never m'1_de any sue!' remark as that 

XQ When ,-;as it you bou'-"ht out your sis .,.n~ 's interest in t11e 

firm of Hirsch Brothers or in your 1 other's estFi te? 

Objection; overruled; excB.!?°tion for 
accused. 

A Indeed, I don I t know, sir. I never attended to '1HY of 

that lrinri of' business. My f. V 1 er arn'l. Leon attended t}1at. 
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. XQ We' 1, about ho:1 long ar;o? A Not so lon~ ago • 

XQ, Well, about how lonz af·ter tho ma.rriage of' yOl r sister and 

Mr. I Sr '.lCS? 
Exception; overruled; exc8ption for ac­

cused. 

A Indeed., I cs.nnot tell ·o t. To tl1e beat of nw jndgue 1t I 

don't thinl::. it nari qo arlfully long. I don't kno 11. 

XQ Hov1 lonii have they been m2rried? A I think about t.1U"e 

year , ian 't it? Bet 1een t 10 and three years, I believe, but I 

.wont say for sure about that. 

XQ A:fter you Rtruclc Isaacs and knoclc.ed him ct.own ,.,i +,h this 

board (exhibitin t,oard.} what did you rlo then? 

to th.e stable. 

A I 17m_ lk ed rl_o·:1 n 

XQ You t .1.rnP'i rig_ t a·,7ay from where he was laying and 1.valked 

d0'".'11 to tl1u st!1ble, did you? A After I got a 7c'lY a fff:; feet --

A:ft er I got array a fe··-1 feet rey fa th er vras t 1~re at him. 

XQ You then went on a ·1ay do'.':n to the stable? 

aft er I Gaw him there. 

A Ye 

XQ Yott hav'n't helJed any in the dray business at all in 

the last six or seven years? A No, sir, I (ton 't t 1inlc I h'.lve 

hel:Ped. to lift a thing -- I might have ~otten 011 the v1agon a1 d rode 

up the street; sonet. in~ lil· ·; t 1q t. 

XQ Your business has been at t e stable and dealing in cattle 

a1rt horses, you s2y? A Yes, Pir. 

XQ Durin
0 

th.at time you have gone around. to surrounding 

counties here, and out throngl·. u-iR county, buying horses? A Ho, 

sir, I went on the tr·1in mostly. Wi1enever ac long trips ':;ere ta_·fm 

by 0onvey:1.n, e my father and Ileon rnnt 11i th t.11em. 

XQ •¥"hat markets would you go to? A staunt.on, '/ood.stock, 

Lexington. 

XQ And yo would bring those horses down to Harrisonburg on 

the pike? A I ':'lO'J.lrl hire 3. rr.an to ride t em,-- to bring the1ii 

here; and brought then from Y/ood.stock 2.nr_ Ne~naa.rket on the train. 
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XQ You say you · ave. been a sick man, or a very sick man, :ror 

the last ci~ht or ten years, Mr. Hirsch? A Yes, sir. 

XQ Have you SIJent as nuch as a vr8ek in bed at a1 tine within 

the last t·.70 years? A I have spent three or fotn· days at a tirne, 

yes, sir. 

XQ You hav 'n' t 1)een in bed as nmcI1 as three or four days at 

any time in the last twelve months? A Yes, sir. 

XQ Befo_e this difficulty, I mean? A Yes, sir. 

XQ V11en vas that? A In may, I 1,7as sick three or four 0..9. s 

at my house on German street. And I was sick own at my house three 

or four days at a t ir.1e I thi1 J( • 
... 

XQ You 7.rere ic c once at home '3.Til'i once at yo 1 tr house? 

A I 1,va s sick at my house in May. 

XQ •rna t ·va s in H-=ty? 

at father's. 

A I was sick three or four days dovm 

XQ You vr ere sick three or :four days each time? A May have 

been a day more or a dg_y less. I c:111 't recollect the days. 

XQ Your physical cow.it.ion now, how d.oes that co1@are wi h 

your concUtion before you were put in jail? A How is t11a t? 

XQ Ho:1 do es your cond.i t ion now, your weight and all, conpare 

·with your condition and weight on the day you '.vere 1,ut in j .- il? 

I clon I t und.erstand your quest ion yet. 
ho 

A 

XQ I mean, is your weight and gener·-11 appearance ano. condition 
" a8 to yo11r boay,and everything, now, as compared with your condition 

tl1e day you were put in jail? A No, Air. I weighed 105 pounds 

when I v,as put in jail, ancl Rone three or four years back I weighed. 

a great deal uore. 

XQ Are you as 77ell 8.S when you were .. t in jail? A now? 

XQ Yes, sir. A Well, I am almost as ·i1ell, I must say. 

XQ Are you as strong and as stout now as when you I ere put 

in jail? A confinement 'NO ld naturally make a an rnaker. 
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XQ so, if any thing, you are not as stout as when you ,,,ere 

put in jail? A I get a lit-f.:.l, ,,-reake:r in my lit:1b'3; yes, sir. 

XQ Yo1 ave the s:J.r.-:e a.:ount of weight, flesh? 

never 7eighed lately since I was arrested. 

A I have 

XQ So far as you c::i.n see you have not :fallen off' any, 01~ 

have you f~llen off ~ny? A I am ,mabl9 to ans~-rer that question. 

XQ There has not been enougr1 for you to notice, if' tllere has 

been 1.ny falling off? A I c·:i.nnot ans-:;er :Cl t all. L1. there is a 

small space and no Plac ::! to i::•-:.lk. 

XQ You have 11ad. a doctor attending yo 1 anrJ. givinz; you medicine 

since you have been in jail? A Yes, ~ir, a 11 along;. 

XQ Treating you for indigestion? 

trouble. 

A Yes, sir, and heart 

Wi tne 'J'3 told to stanri anicle. 

Here the defense rested. 

THIS BEIHG O:F1 THE EVIDEHCE introd.uced, or offe::::'•.:.ld. to be 

introd.nced, by the defendant, to maintain the issue upon his Part, 

tliereu_1on the commonweal th, to f'urther rraintain the issue upon its 

part, introducec~ the foliho'ring testimony, in reb ttal: 
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WEB l.iCGLAUGH!.iIH, recalled and examined. :or tne C omr:1onve9.l th 

by Mr. c onrad: 

Q Hr. cGlaughlin, after Mox Hirsch hs.r.:l said that he had hit 

Isaacs, state 'lhether or not Leon Hirsch th1.m said, he ought to 

have been hit, he is al'klYS butting in? 

air. 

A Th'.lt is '.'!hat he Raid., 

Q He made that state11ent? A YeR, sir. 

WitncsR tol<i. to stanr'l. aside. 

MRS. BUREGUARD DOVEL, rec,1llad by Mr. ccmrar:l t'or COltLon l .al th: 

Q Lrs. Dov8l, afte.e H1,. Isa:ic9 i1ar:1. been hit, did you see Mr. 

L vlwig Hirsch, and :from what d.iroction c'licl he aP:pear to cor,1e? 

A I did --

MR. SIPE: I th ink that •· '3.8 all covered. 
by tl1e exan in:1tion in cl1ief ,-- what 
sll\3 3T,r an,-1 1.1ho she qaw. I think. the 
exaw~nation wil 1 disclose that very 
question; I 1. Jan to say, its 9ur~)ort. 

TH~ COllli{T: I think it is a proper question 
in :rebuttal. 

11R. SIPE: We save the point. 

Q well, ';'!here r::.id. he 3.p ear to come from? 
off 

A I saw him 

comin..., around the corner of water street. Came from t.1 ... n.irr1ction 
A 

of the stable. 

Q Had any person been -- Did you hear any person call him? 

A I did. 

A I did. 

Q Could you see ~:rho it rms? A I am sure it 1.7aFi his yo"..tn,.:.est 

daughter Julia. She ran out and hollared "Oh, PaPa, Papa. 11 

Q No~7, at that tir e, where were Jou then he came arounrt the 
crossing. 

corner? A I had done gone up saxt:na u~~~:1~J to the ~ij~t\~~. 

Q You had walked up -- A To the ~ n~- cros ing. 
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Q That the crossi1 g that corues across f_om the Hirsc1 house to 

rs. .Iyers 1 ? A Yes, sir; I had started home. 

' You had start eel on that croRsini? A Yes, Rir, goine; 

across to Urs. Uye:::s. 

Q rhen he came up vrhere dicl he go hen? A ''Jent to 11r. 

Isaacs, and he called for some one to bring hi .. so:me v1ater. 

Witness told to stand. aside. 

NELLIE LOGAN, examined for comr.1011-:;,calth by }-r. Coi1rad: 

Q, Nellie, you ar~ .1r. Geor1ie Logan's daug:ter'? A Yes, sir. 

Q Ancl ho',7 old are you? A Thirteen. 

Q were you :ii th llrs. Dovel there on the c or ier of' · a. ter 

street anr'l Gerr:ian street the night r. IRaacs .ms hit? A Yes, sir. 

Q Well, did you see Hr. L ::.~.wi.._., Hirsch at any point ir nedia t ely 

after 1 r. Ir=Jaacs was knocked (lO''lll there? A Yes, sir. 

Q WheI•e ·."i~I't: y · 13.t the time you sa 7 him? A we were near 

the corner of German and Water streets, at i,!r. Hirsch' r-:1 ho,;.se. 

Q Near the corner of water and German streets? 

Hirsch's house. 

Q Where did Mr. Hirsch ome fro n ·1nrl.. '7here r'!.id e g~? 

ca'IIle from up water street and he went to Mr. Isaacs. 

Q And he uent to Mr. Isaacs? A Yes, i:;ir. 

OR0S'3-EX 'UHA'l1ION BY MR. LEE: 

XQ Litt.le Lacly, did you see any part of tlie f,;i..ght? 

oir. 

A He 

A No, 

XQ Wl1ere had you been? 

street apiece • 

A We had been down North Gern1an 

XQ And in which direction • .. e e yo 6 0 ing '::h n you r et .• r. 

Ludv,ig Hirsch? A were going south. 

XQ Who was with you? A Mrs. Dovel. 
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XQ Mrs. Dovel \7as ·,i th yo·t ~ 11 the rrny up to the corner? 

A Yes, sir. 

XQ were yo,1 with Hrs. Dovel hen she passed l)y the Hirsch 

house? A I rms in front of her a piece. 

XQ Hoy; f'ar in front? A I expect three feet. 

XQ You 1•1ere three feet, but you vmre practically with her, 

you and :Jhe ·.1ere ·.-:a lkinc; along tos;ether? A Yes, ir. 

XQ V re you w·i th "her lhen s11e stop::_'.ied at the corner of' H:r. 

Hir8ch I s porch 

her stop. 

near t e cornei .. of the porch? A I did not see 

XQ 

XQ 

XQ 

XQ 

Yon oJ.1 not see her stop? A I walked on to the corner. 

Did you hear any rock thrown there? A } o., sir. 

Dicln I t see anything of it at all? A Ho, si1 ... 

And you vrnre with Lirs. Dovel? A Yes, sir. 

DIRECT EXAMIHATION HESUMEL BY vi}{. CONRAD: 

THE COUHT: '!here was r. Ludwig Hirsch 
when you saw hir1? 

· I':;?UE~s: He passed me at the corner. 

THE COUH.T: At tne corner? 

WITHE ss: Yes, s.:..r. 

Q Vlhat were you n.oing at the corne:r at "":.hat tir:1e? 

Objection bee· t~·e ~oing into exar:1in·1tion 
in chief; ove1 .. rt.tled; exc~i::,tion .1oted 
:for tl1 e ac~ l.lsed. 

Q Had you stopped '3.t the corner, or yrnre you going on, or 

what were you doin 0 ':l.t the time he cg_ ,e around the corner? 

Objection;ov~r:i:-tlled;exception noted for 
accused. 

A I was going across the stre t, over to Mrs. ,1yers corner. 

THE co RT: You say he passed you at the 
corner? 

WITNESS: Of Genaan and Water streets. 
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THE COURT: Did you see hir.1 before he r;ot 
to you? 

V!ITHESS: Yes, ~ir 1 I sa 1 him co 1ing UP 
water street from the stable. 

MH. SIPE: What .1:r. Hirscl1 was that? 

WITNESS: Hr. Lud.wig Hirsch. 

XQ You kno·,y Mr. Ludwit:; Hirsch well? A Yes, sir. 

XQ How near d.o yo·i live to him? A I live on south High street. 

XQ HO'/ far? A Passed the foundry. 

'R. P.,.AHH.IS: Out on the . arm springs road? 

WITNESS: Yes, sl. 

XQ You continued ·ri th 11rs. Dovel after you cro::isA<t the street? 

A Ye~, sir. 

XQ She as crossing the street "Ji th you? A Yes, sir. 

XQ Did Mrs. Dovel say anything to you at all as you uent along 

there about any fight or · ny rl.isturbn.nce? A I did not hear her. 

XQ Sh ju8t continued :1.long ·.:i th ou? A Yes, sir. 

BY MR. JO RAD: 

Q When did you first kno"!1 that there hac: belm a fight, that 

there had been a man knocked d.ov;n? 

Objection;overruled;exception for the 
accuse • 

A I heard the lick and I looked around when I heard the l.i.c - • 

That is the :first I kne,,, of it. 

Q When you lookeri around uhere v,as r. Isaacs? 

Objection; over:r·ulec~; exce:)tion for the 
accused. 

A Hew as in th_e road. 

Q He ·r s in t 1e road, but standing up, or lying dmm, r how? 

Objection;overruled;exception for the 
ac,.."<-lSed.. 

Q You say you he rd the lick and looked ar01. nd. anrl sai:1 l'r. 

Isaacs in the road, at what place on the road? A I didn't see 
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him rigltt at _i_st b0c':i.n.::;e I cti1n't look in the road v1hen I first 

turned around. 

THE COU".rlT: was he on his .f·eet or on the 
ground? 

WITNESS: On the ground. 

Q Was l1e laying dO''m or standing up when you saw him? 

A vrnen I looken. at hi.. he was laying do';7n. 

Q Did you see Mox Hirsch? 

walkeci. a·;my fror:1 him. 

A Yes, sir, sa">:1 hir. after he 

Q How long after you heard thiR licK dicl you see 1.iox walk a•1ay 

from him? A I can~1ot <1'.:lY ho1 long it '.1as, but It wasn't bnt a 

few saconda, I don't expect. 

\fltnass tolci. to stand Rirte. 

1 RS. HARY HOLLAR, exqmined :fOl" the C011ll:10nweal th by Hr. com~ad: 

Q Mrs. Hollar, just let e locate you, you ~ere livin~ ~t the 

time of this difficulty in the 'hou!'rn just opposite where r. Isaacs 

and Hr. Snell lived? A Yes, gir, I live north of them, I don't 

live rig11t direct across. I live in the first ho v=.:e afte,~ you 

crosq the bridge on the west side of the street. 

Q It i :practic . .:illy opi)osite from vrhere Lr. Isa1.cs lived? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q 1Vhat first d:re•.', yo tr 3.ttention to the fact that there 113.s 

any difficulty 01.t ":.here? A First I hd'.lrd 1:1as tl1e licl<.. 

Q Whex-e aere you at that tit e? A I rras sitting on my :rront 

Porch. 

Q From there, thei, 7here did yo ~o? 

mediately up and nent u:p t e str8::,t as :far as Mrs. Rosan erger I s 

gate nd there I met her coming out and we walked. strai~ht out to 

where Mr. Isaacs was in the road. 

Q 1. rs. Rosenb ere;er lives A In the hous~ rie;h t next to 

mine. 
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Q The one immediately south of yours? A Yes, sir, 

Q That ho 1se is about op:posi te rhere the Isaacs live, too? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q \V/ell, now, you got up froD yo,:tr porch ann_ walked. out to 

your front gate and. cane up the pavement as far as l rs. Rosenberger' s 

te and she c·ime out anc. you both went where? 

across where Isaacs lay ·n the roa. 

A Right straight 

Q Had Hr. Lud'lliS Hirsch gotten there when you alL Mrs. Rosen­

berger reached there or dirl he come after yo•t reached th e? 

A He came after I go there. 

Q A:f ter you reached there? A Yes, sir, after I ~eache~ 

Mr. Isaacs. 

CROSS-EXAHINATION BY MR. LEB: 

XQ 1/hen you got to where .fr. Isaacs rms lying, vi1,. t i'l you 

do? A I dirln't do 'J.11Yt.1i1g but stanrl there and look at hi1.. 

XQ Did you say anyti.1ing? A Uo, r::ir, I rt.icln 't say ar~'t11ing. 

XQ Did you malrn any effort to help him or to see how badly 

hurt he v,as? A No, sir. Me and Mr-s. Rosenberge:r 'va11~cd Ul) there 

and seen the ma lyin.; in he road, and I asked her what man it 

was and s~e said M~. Isaacs. 

XQ You just looked at him and r.18.de no ef':'ort to help him at 

all? A Wo, sir, I rlid not tqke holrl. of l1i. at all. 

XQ Did you see anything of M • Mox Hirsch at thn. t time? 

A No, sir, I did not see hi!n at that time. 

XQ Did you see anythin::; of Urs. Art r Hirsc;h at that tir=ie? 

A Yes, sir, I noticed her around there, 

XQ Where wa8 she? A Just st~naing a little r8YS from him. 

She was stan .ing on the id.evralk. BY the time we ":7alked up she 

vras on the sirle '!Ialk. 

XQ What ,as she rl.oing? A I don't think she :1as doing any-

thing. . Frightened likrJ tn, rest of us. 
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XQ Did you see a~rthing of Mrs. Isaacs? 

was there too. 

A Yes, sie, she 

XQ What ~as 9he doing? A Mo thing. V/alki!1J; oa ,k 7Rrds and 

forwqrds on the sidewalk, all I seen. 

XQ Ho·v long after you zot there ·ms it that Hr. Albert got 

there? A Few mirru.tes. 

XQ Do you mean minutes or se-Jonrls? A I think it might 

have been a minute or tv;o. Not much uore than that. He .. rasn't 

so f 1.r belo1rr ne. 

XQ Who got there first, Hr. Albert or . r. Hirsch? A Why, 

Mr. Hirsch got there -fi_ st: 

XQ Hr. Hirsch e;ot there first? 

picked UJ Lr. Isaacs' head. 

A Yes, sir, he ran and 

XQ When di~ yo, first see Mr. Hirsch? 

and picked up his head. 

XQ Did you see ·rhere he ca !le f'rom? 

ing from his home. 

A When he ran uP 

A Came as if he -raA com-

XQ Ii.1 other i70rds he came right across the street? A He 

may hava come right across the c:;treet, but if he did he ran to Hr. 

I sac1cs. 

XQ How near was he to 14r.I Raacs' body bt;fore you sa v Mr. 

Lud,·,ri~ Hirsch? A I may have seen-him t 1;:o or tl re~ :feet. 

XQ I:: you only sa ;1 him ri thin tv10 or three feet of the bo · 

ho'.'/ do you know in what direction he cqme? A I kno•7 h.e ct.ir'ln 't 

come by me. I vas sta. cling most to Isaacs' body. 

XQ You did not see him until he got ·.vi thin t.m or three feet 

of the body? A Ho, sir. I said he came up and almost grabbed .Jr. 

I Sa'lC s head up. 

1/ITHESS TOLD TO STAND ASID~. 
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:r.rns. ROSJI!NBEHGER, examined. for Co:rnr::onw,_;al th by Fr. onrad: 

Q I believe you are a Gerr an ladY? 

speak the English. 

A Yes, sir, I can't 

Q You live in tJ1 e 10 .tse right next to v,. ere Hrs. Hollar lives? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And you vrere living there at the tiH1e Mr. I s3.-1.cr-i 11as killed? 

A Yes, ~ir. 

Q That is just across the street f'".rom where Mr. Isaacs lived? 

A Rig11 t acroGq. 

Q You are the rrife of l.:r. Rosenber ·er v1}10 has a tayloring 

establishment on East l. arket street? 

A Yes, sir, 

I was at ho:e. 

Q HO'!J a.id you i'ir st f incl there h:i.d been any rtifficul ty in 

the ro d there? A Little girl first called me, called Llt3 fro1. 

the kitchen. I was in the kitchen at thi tir:1.e. 

Q You vmre out in your kitchen at tne tine y01u· little girl 

calltY-1. ou? A Yes, sir. 

Q She ,ms o 1 tl1e f.i.ont Porch an1 c3.lled you? A Yes, sir. 

Q ~ 10n you cru e ott A '/hen I came out from t e 1<.i tchen 

I found Hr. Isaacs i. the middle of the roac. 

Q 1hen yo c3.me o t from the ki ten.en? A Yes, sir. 

Q fou found Mr. Isaacs in the middle of the road? A Yes,sir. 

Q You came out onto the front porch from the kitchen? 

sir, fr .. rnt porch. 

A Yee, 

Q And f~o~ t1ere to the front gate? 

the :rro nt yard. 

A Yes, ca1. e fir~t o 

Q And went out to the front gate? A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you see anything of Mrs. Hollar tJ1ere then? 

she came with me. 

A Yes, 
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Q 1/here did. you ~o from your gate? A I cane straisl1t dov1n 

the midclle of the road and saw Hr. I sg,acR laying in the mi cue of 

the road. 

sir. 

Q straight over to Isaacs laying in the r:1iddle of the ro...,c.? 

A Yes, sir, 

Q Do you kno 1 Hr. Lur."."rig Hirsch, the olcl gentleman? A Yes, 

Q Did he get there to Isaacs body before yo and Ers. Hollar 

got there or after? A Uo, YJhen I cari e I found ·.rr. Hirsch llar: 

hold of Hr. Isaacs 1 head. 

Q !hen you came out o Isaacs' body 

was sitting at the J.1P.ad of Mr. Isa3.cs. 

A Mr. Ludwig Hirsch 

Q He was out there when you reached l1ir.n? A Yes, sir, wl1en 

I c·rnrn out I :found both r:ien fir st. 

MR. CO!~RAD: If I underst·1nd the 'ili tness 
I arn tal-ce1 by s tr1Jrise, but I will 
ask it aca-.Ln to be sure. 

Q On account of your trouble in speakin;; English I.want to 

get clear just what you have to say, now. fhen you got outside 

of the gate you then went v,rhere? 

of' the road. 

A went straight in the middle 

Q •ras Hr. Isaacs' body laying straie;. t ii f'ront of yo tr gate 

or up the r oac: or rloi:711 tl1e roac? A Right at my gate 

right of my gate. 

to the 

Q To the right o:f your ~ate, do you r1ean it was lyin~ up 
• 

to·,73.rr'l.s the corner? A U:P in the middle of' the road. 

Q Was it right in front of your gate; this bony, 1,7as it lying 

up towar 1ts the corner or rra, it lyin..:, do,m toT1ards the bridie? 

Q No, his feet was to !tr. Is!lacs 1 side, the head v1as to my 

side. 

Q Ti1a t still don't tell I e rrhat I am triJing to get at. I a~. 

not asking 1.i'That posit ion his body ~as in, but whereabouts in the 
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road was his body lying, ,,,as it rig11t in front of your gate, as 

you came out, or vrns it up tl1e hill f'ro1:1 your gate? 

the hil 1 more. 

A It Wa8 UP 

Q Up towards t11e corner? A Up to tl1e corner. 

JUROR: Up towarcJ.8 th.e corner more, she 
says. 

Q When you came out of your gate you had to turn up that way 

to get to the bocty? A Yes, that way from me. 

Q How f'ar from your gate· do you tl1ink it was that his body 

was lyinG? About how f'ar? 

THE COURT: Couldn't she identify the 
position by that photograph? 

MR. CONRAD: I rlon 't know whetl1er she can, 
her house sets bacl(. 

THE COUHT: Let me ask a question. Do 
you live in the house next to the 
brirlge. Mrs. Hollar lives there, 
and you live next to virs. Hollar? 

IITUESS: Ye8, sir. 

THE COURT: Who lives in the house south 
of you? 

WI 'flfTilS S : Mrs. C latch ey. 

THE: COURT: w110 lives in the next house, 
Mrs. Myers? 

WITNRSS: Mrs. M1ters; yes, sir. 

Q Row, here is a Picture; t~1is 1 s tlle pavement tl'1a t runs in 

front of your house; there is the gate j;o your yard there. You 

came out of' that gate? A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you go out in the middle of the road and so up there? 

A I went up the pavement. 

Q You went up tl1e })aven ent? A Yes, sir .. 

Q To where Mr. I !3aacs I body 7as lyir1g? A Yes, sir. Mr. 

Isaacs' bodv wasn't on the pavement it was in the mid.dle o:f the 

road. 

Q You came out on the pavement and went up to where Mr. 
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Isaaco I body was, if I underst· r.rJ. :rou ri~ht. No"7, did Hr. Hirsch, 

old Mr. Hirsch, Mr. Ludwig Hirsch -- was he tl1ere with ,Ir. Isaacs 1 

boc'.Y before you got up to it? 

Mr. Hirsch by his side. 

A Yes, sir. When I came I found 

Q 1/hen you got up to the body you fo l.11d } r. Ludwig Hirsch 

there? A Yes, sir. 

Q I will a9k Hrs. Rosenberger if' she did not, in answer to 

that question five minutes ago, in that rooi.l t.} ere, say that Hr. 

Ludwig Hirsch got there after nhe got there. 

MH. SIPE: Does your Honor thinl<: that is 
p•oper to be asked of hi~ own witness? 

HE COUHT: I think he can ask her the 
question. 

Q Did I asK yo·J.., or did I not, in the room there junt a fel'l 

minutus go, before you ca1.1e out, -- didn't I ask yo, vrhcther yo 1 

got to Isaacs first or whether Mr. L 1dwig Hirsch got to l1im first? 

A I say when I came oat I ~O'J.ll". :t r. Hirsch with I :=macs. That 

is all I conl<l say. I couldn't say more than I saw. · 

Q I don't •:rant yo,_t to '18.Y anything more tll3.n what you saw? 

A That 1s all I can do. 

Q Didn't you tell me j mt a fe1.': minu.tes a 0 0 -­

Hollar ~"Till tell you. 

A Mrs. 

Q Didn't you tell me the sane thing? A I rridn' t say anyt11.ing, 

Mrs. Hollar told you. 

Q '.fhich 3ot there first? A I think I got there first and 

lv rs. Hollar car.le aft-er me. I don I t reme1uber which was coming n. t 

that time. 

itness told to stand aside. 
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MEL o: court ao.j ourned un ti 1 Friday norning, 
9:30 o'clock. 

MR. COi'JRAD: I am through for the .,or.r:0111:1e3.ltl1, <,ir. 

THIS BEI TG ALL OF THE TE.STI11 01n introduced, or offered to be 

introduced,, on behalf of the CO!D!. onue'll t 1, to r,iaintain the if3sue 

on its beh;:.1.lf, in rebuttal, thereupon the defe idant, to further 

aintain the issne on his behalf, introduced, in snrrebnttal, the 

follov,ing testimony: 

JULIA HIRSCH, for the defense: examined by Mr. Harris: 

Q Mrs. Dovel stated on yesterdaY t:1at 11hile ql1e nas :passing 

your father's resirtence on the evening of t 1e 29th of July, after 

the kil:i.in 6 of Hr. Isaacs, she heard you run do•:m the street and 

call for your father, "Papa, :Pa:Pa, come here." state ;7hether or 

not yo 1 d.id that? A No, sir, I dirl not. 

CROSS-EXAHINATIOH BY MR. COHRAD: 

XQ Your rBlations to Mr. Isaacs ::i.nd his wife, ann. the rela­

tions of your sister Lessie, have been e1.tirely f'rienrUy for Pone 

tii. e, have they not? A Yes, sir. 

XQ You live in the hone of your fathe1· and 1Iox? A Yes, qir. 

l R. HARRIS: You are a sister of' 1.1r. - ox 
Hirsch? 

\VITHESS: Yes, sir .. 

Witness tol~ to tand aside. 
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And this being all the eviderce introduced 

on behalf of the Commonweal th and on behalf of the 

accused, the Court instructed the jury as is eet out 

Bills of Exception no. 4 and No. 5, and th reupon, 

after argument of counsel, and fter the jury had ren­

dered their verdict of murder in the second degree and 

ascertained his punishment at confinement in the pen­

itentiary for nine years, and before judgment thereon 

by the court, the accu ed, by counsel, moved the court 

to se aside the verdict of the jury and grant hi a 

ne trial u on the ground (in addition to those set forth 

i BillR of Exce tion :No. 1, o. 2, No. 3, No. 4 and lW 5. 

th t the sai c. v rdi ct vas contrary to the law and the 
he curt 

evidence, which motion WJCI overruled and refused to 

set aside said verdict and grant t 1e accused a ne trial, 

to which ruling and judgment of the Court the accu ed 

excepts and tenders this his Bill of Exception ro. 6, 

and ray o the sat:1e may be signed, sealed, enrolled and, 

togrther with the evidence herei nbefor setforth adduced 

at the triaL m_:.1,y be man<> a part of the record, which is 

r' done, and the Cour~ certified the for going 

-- a'"' all the evidence adduced nee ~ 
the trial. 

<" ri 
_ signed, sealed and enrolled this tr_e day 

. d t1.i n thirty dn.y c re t after the 
i.id OU .._ :z JJ. .A/-z;:._ ~ ------Judge of t e 

--ki ngha " 
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InstruC'tion :o. --· 
T. e Court instructs the ju..,..y that n :rder in trA :i''Lst 

degree is any 1 illful, deliberate, pTemedi~ated killing ~ith malice 

afo::-e:hou~ht. I 11 other I!nl:rder than . der in trie firP t deere is 

:t ,,.der in t e S":l ond. deg!'ee. 

{, 
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Instruct ion _ro. . ---

The Court instruc"ts the jury t at to C'onsti t te ·villf'ul, 

deliherato and ~~emeditated killing, it is not necessary that the 

intention to kill should exist for 9.ny particular length of time 

prior to the actual killing; it is ~aT~ha~~ intention 

ohe'tl.l ci cone into existence for the irst tine at t.10 time of uch 

killing or an, time reviousl. 

"B:RG. Wr-i ht I 
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Instruction No. --· 
The Cou:rt instructs the jury that manslaughter is the 

unlawful kill tng oJ' another 'Hi thout malice, either exp:tess or 

implied. ~he difference betTreen the crimes of murder and mal'l.S.langhter 

consists in this, that rnanslangh'ter, whe:re voluntary, arises from 

the sudeen heat of the passions, murder from the icked_ness of the 

heart. 

i 

, 
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InstT1ction Jo. 

The Cou:.rt instructs the jury that voluntary r1anslaughter 
~~ 

is the unlawf 1 killing of another •: ithout malice, actu&l or im-
~· '?tM"-

plicd., upon a s 1.ddcr. h,, . ,a '.!. '-'~•Jcnable :provocation ')T in 1m t al 

co bat. 
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'T'he Cont instru:~ts the j Y.'Y th·.t in o:r·der to j1rntLiy a 

homicide on the ground t at it 1.iras ornmittcd. in self defence, it 

:r.lUst te ehoi:m th.2.t t0e accused, at tbe time he rausea. t e death of 

t:be deceased, was acting under a reasonable belief that he 1.ivas in 

irnmL_ent danger of death o:r great bodily harm from the or--ceesed, and 

that it "'as necessary fo:r the accusP-d to strike the f=.tal tloTI in 

orde:r to avoid death or great bodily harm 1rhich wa qpparently im­

minent to the accused. 

Ar..d th.e Court :f'urt1er inst"ucts the jury tat the necessity 

relied ·upon to justify the killing of ano must not arise o t of 

tre p::risoner' s own misconduct :U-C A-<!-Cl~--;J /h 

i I 
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Instruction No. ---· 

The CouJ.'t instructs the jury that in all cases of insult 

and J.nsu.fficient provocation, if it may be reasonably inferred from 

the weapon made use of, or the manner of using it, or from any 

circ1unstance, that the Darty intended merely to do some great 

bodily harm, such honicide will be murder in the second degree, in 

like manner as if no yrovocation had been given, but not a case of 

murder in the first degree. ( see Mc. Daniell v ,.'. commonweal th, 77 

va., 281-286). 
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Instruction no. ---· 

The Court instructs the jury that whe:re a person, tough 

excited by an insult and by a severe blow, f'or which he had the right 

of :redress, was not by either of these causes, so de}Jri ved of his 

mental fE.culties that he could not distinctly understand what he 

was about, kills the person by whom he had been insulted and struck 

and after he had done so, said that he had gi1en the decea ed what 

he deserved and that any man of s1,irit ould no the like, it con­

stitutes murder in the fist deeree. (See Commonwealth vs. JoneB, 

I Leigh, 598 ) • 

7 
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Inr",rn t ion ">lo. 

'I' .e Cou:rt instr 1cts the j y that ... e:.1 a mortal ·01md is 

given, r ith a deadly weapon in the l)revious ·)ossession of the 

slayer, ,·ithout a y, or upon very slight _;:rovocation, it is prir:ia 

facie a •;ill:f 1 and premeditated killing and t ro~:s :pon t e ac­

cused the necessity of proving extenuating circumstances • 

• Jo 

,I 

j h I 

1 -,n,v; 
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RGI ~IA. 

IN THE CI C IT COUR'l' OF RO CKil1GHA!, CO lI':Y • 
.s~ 

-t:re'±"~M:.., ~l.':3.:lli!, 1909, 

--------) 
) 

C roNWEALT OF VIRGINIA 

vs ) 

:HAXIMILI.An H RSCH. 

-------------------j 

BILL OF EX.Cb> PTION 

NO. 5. 

Be it remembe ed that upon the trial of this 

case and after t ... e introduction of all the testimony 

on behalf of the com"l.onwealth and on behalf of he 

accused, the accuse tende d ertain irstructions to 

t e Court and pra ed tr ... e Court to grant the saict , whi c 

instruction, as en er d by tho accused are lettered 

A to N., inclu ive, as follows: 

A. 

The Court ingtructs the jury that the accus d 

i presumed to be innocent until his guilt is established 

beyond all reasonable doubt, and tl:at t .is presw ptio 1 

of innocence follows the accused thr u.ghout the entire 

case and applies at every stage thereof until reraoved 

beyond 11 rea~onabl doubt; therefore, if the jury en­

tertain~ reasonable doubt of he guilt of the accused, 

or of any f ""ct necessary to establish .i ·uil t,, SU ch 

doubt is decisive and it is the duty cf •he ury to 

find the accused not guilty. 
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B. 

The Court in tructs the jury that if upon the 

whole evidence in the case there is any rational hy­

pothesis consistent with the conclusion that t e 

homicide was excusable the accused cannot be convicted 

of any offence. 

c. 

The Court instructs the jury that by reasonable 

doubt is rne nt such a substantial doubt growing out of 

the evidence, or lack of evidence, as would cause a man 

of average :prudence to hesitate and be uncertain about 

a matter involving the graver transacticns of life. 

D. 

The Court instructs the jury that if they 

entertain a r .asonable doubt as to whether tr!e deceased 

or the defendant was the original aggressor in the con­

flict ·hich ensued and in which the deaeased met his 

death, it is their duty to solve such doubt in favor 

of the defendant ar d to consider the case just as though 

the deceased 1as the original aggressor and committed 

the first assault. 

E. 

The Court instructs the jury that if the~ 

shall telie ve f om the evidence that the defendant struck 

and killed the deceased under a reasonable apprehension 

that he was in danger of serious bodily har at the 

handn of fue deceased, then he vas excusable in so acing, 

thou h such danger may have been unreal. The question 

for the jury in tnis casa is not whether the taking of 
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the life of the deceased might have been sa ely avoided, 

but whether the accused, under all the circumstances by 

which he found himself surrounded, migp.t reasonably have 

believed and did believe it necessary to use the defensive 

' action which resulted in the death of the assailant in 

order to avoid serious bodily harm. 

F. 

The Court :x~tt instructs the jury that 

although they may believe from the evidence t~at the 

defendant, on the afternoon of the tragedy, used rude 

and i nsul tine language to, or about the little chi lo. 

of the deceased, and that such rude and insulting 

language was communicated to the deceased, this did not 

justify or excuse the de ceased in making an assault upon 

the def en dan t, nor did the use of such language by the 

defendant, in any way, deprive him of his right of self 

defense. 

G. 

If the jury r qq:ii1 believe from the ev ide:nce 

that on the afternoon of July the 29th last, the defernmt v.a.aa 

on one of the public streets -O'f the Town of Harrison-

burg, and was conducting r'.imself in a lawful and peace-

able r:-ian ,er, and was then and there assaulted by the 

deceased, then said defendant had the right to repell 

force by such force as he believed, and had reason to 

believe, was necessary for his own protection from serious 

bodily harm; and if I in the exercise of this rigr>.t of 

self-defer:tse, his assail;,_ t was lcilled, such killing was 

excusable and the jury slould find the defendant not 

guilty. 
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H. 

The Court instructs the jur that, although 

the, may believe f o.n t:1.e evidence that there was ill­

feeling existing between the de ceased and the defendant, 

an tat the deferdant had uttered threats against the 

deceased, still, if they furthe believe from the evidence 

that 1hile the defendant was lawful y and peaceably upon 

the streets of Harrisonburg, he was assaulted and struck 

in the face y the deceased, then the act of the defendant 

in striki the neceased must be referred to the pro-

vocation of the blov, received by him, rather thR.n t the 

I. 

The Court instructs the jury that if they 

believe fro.n the evidence, that on the evenin of the 

29th day of uly last, the accused was lawful y and 

peaceably upon one of the streets of the Town of 

Harrisonburg, and that he was then and there assaulted 

and struck in the face by the deceased, then he had a 

ri ht to use such force as W"'S reasonabl..e,. necessary in 

order to repell such attack. And should the jur further 

believe fro .. the evidence that in repelling such attack 

the defendant used a piece of plank, not previously in his 

poseeasion, but suddenly picked up by him while 'the 

assault upon hLn was being continued, a blow from vhich 

would not ordinarily _produce death or serious bodily 

harm, and unintentionally used therewith more or reater 

force than was necessary, but that such force was used 

by him for the sole pur ose of repelling his assailant 

an' without any intention to cause him seri us bodily 

harm or death, then the killing would n only be 

involuntary manslaughter. 
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J. 

The Court instructs the jury that voluntary 

manslaughter io the intP.ntional killing of another in 

heat of blood, upon strong provocation and without 

malice. 

K. 

The Court instructs the jury that although 

they may believe from the evidence that the defendant, 

while engaged in a personal combat w · th the deceased, 
~ .. \,."-·\\.~ 

struck Mrn. JW~ta:. Hirsch, who had run between ther.i., 

either purposely or accidently, they are not to consider 

that fact, if fact it be, in determining the guilt or 

innocence of th defendant in this case. 

L. 

The ourt instructs the jury that in determining 

whether or not the aefendant struck the deceased under a 

reasonable apprehension that he was in danger of serious 

bodil harr, and in weighing and determining the natur£· 

and haracter of his acts at that tLne, they should 

consider all the facts and circumstances, as disclosed 

cy the evi r,ence, as they !!lay rea onably have appeared 

to the defendant 9.t the ti.rn he struck the blow. 

M. 

The Court instructs the jury that while the 

burden of proof rests upon a person :plea.din-.:, self­

defense, that burden has been borne whenever the evidence, 

whether offered by him or the Commonwealth, creates in 

the minds of the jury a reasonable douot as to whe~her 

he struck in self-defenoe or otherwise. 
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N. 

The Court instr cts the jury that if upon 

all of the evidence in this case they entertain a 

easonable doubt as to whether the defendant struck the 

fatal blow under a. reasonable apprehension that he ms 

in irn ni nent da rger of death or serious bodily harm, or 

for some other reaso it is their duty to solve such 

doubt in favor of the accused. 

But the Court refused to instruct the jury 

as prayed for b T the accused:, as aforesaid, in the 

Instructions A to n. inclusive, but granted Instructions 

A. C. and F., as tendered; and modified E;_,G•; and I.; and, 

thereupon, gave to the jury inst uctions Hos. 12, 13, 

14, 15, 16 and 17, as follows: 

12. 

The Co rt instructs the jury that the accused 

is presumed to be innocent until his guilt is established 

beyond all reasonable d~ubt, and that this presuro tion 

of innocence follows the accused throughout the entire 

case and applies at every stage thereof until removed 

beyond all reasonable doubt; therefore, if the jury 

entertain a reasonable doubt of the guilt oft e accused, 

or of any fact necessary to establish his ::,uilt, such 

doubt is decisive and it iA the dut of the jury to find 

the accused not guilty. 



T • 



f • 

The Court instructs the Jury that by reasonab1e 

doubt is meant such a substantiai doubt growing out of the evidence, 

or lack of evidence, as would cause a man of average prudence to hes­

itate and be uncertain about a matter involving the graver traneac­

tions of 1.ife. 

1.4. 

If the Jury believe from the evidence that the 

accused struck and killed the deceased under& reasonable belief 

that he was in danger of serious bodily harm at the hands ot the 

deceased andthat it was necessary for him to use such means for his 

own protection from death or serious bodily harm, a.nd, in the opin• 

ion of the Jury, the circmnstances existing at the t~ne, as they 

appeared to the accused, were reasonably eufficient to produce 

such belief in the mind of the prisoner, then the prisoner was ex­

cusable in so doing, thoug such danger may have been unrea1. The 
not 

uestion for the Jury i /whether the taking of the life of the 

deceased might in fact have been safely avoided, but whether the 

accused, under all the ci cumstances by which he found himself 

surrounded, as shown by the evidence, might have reasonably have 

believed and did believe it necessary to use the defensive action 

which resulted in the death of the assailant in order to avoid 

seriu• bodily harm. 

15. 

The Court instructs the Jury that although they may 

believefrom the evidencethat the defendant, on the afternoon of 
I 

the tragedy, used rudeand insulting language to, or about the little 

child of the deceased, and that such rude and insulting language was 

communicated to the deceased, this did not justify or excuse the 





.. 

deceased in making an assault upon the defendant, nor 

did the use of such aneu e by the defendant, in any 

way, deprive him of the right of self-defense. 

16. 

If the jury believe from thf evidence that 

on the afternoon of July 29th,last, the defendant was on 

one of the nublic streets of the Town of Harrisonburg, 

and vms conducting hi,nself in a lawful and peace ble 

manner, nd was then and ther. assaulted by the de­

ce:',lsed, then the defendant had the ri. ht to repell 
~t/k ~ 

force by fa.iae,e euoh as under the circumstances then 

existing, a they appeared to the accused, was re sonably 

n cessa:y for h · s own protection fro::n serious bodily 

harm; and if, in the exercise of this right of self­

defense, his assailant was killed, such killin 0 was 

excusable and the jury should find the accused not 

guilty. 

17. 

The Court instructs the jury that if they 

believe f on the evidence that on the evening of the 29th 

of July last, the accused got into a difficulty ith the 

deceased in which it as not necessar or his ov n pro-

testion from serious bodil harm to kill the decei1sed or 

to do hi;rt reat bodily har , and that in the course of 

said difficulty used a piece of plank, not previously in 

his possession, but suddenly picked up by hiill 1 a blow 

from which was not likely to produce dea'th, consideramg 

the manner of its use, and frorr1 wh· ch it would be con­

trary to any reasonable exp ctation for death to result, 

then the killing would only be involuntar "anslaug 1ter. 

Involunt ry manslaughter is a. lcillinD' ontr r 
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to intention, with an instrument not likely to produce 

death, or from which it would be contrar to any reason.;. 

able expectation for death to result, in sudden heat 

of :passion. 

and refused, in toto, Instructions numbered B.D.H. J • 

K. L. . and N. to which action of the Court in refusing 

to grant theinstructions :prayed for by the accused, as 

follows : B. D. H. J. K. L. M. and IT., and each of 

them and in refusin to grant Instructions numbered 

E. G. and I. as tendered by the accused and modifyir~ 

them, and each of them, the accused, by counsel, 

excepts and prays that this his Bill of Exception ~o. 

5 may be signed, sealed and enrolled, and made a part 
/,1 

of the record which is accordingly done, this the-~~·~-

day of October,1909r~nd within hirty days _oext from the 

adj ourrnnent of said Court. 

J a, J&jp_,4 Seal. 
Judge of the Circuit Court of 
Rockingham County,Virginia. 
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VIRGINIA. 

IRCUIT OURT OF ROCKINGl ~ COUNTY• 

------· -- --~ ---- ____ ,_.. - -: 

COMLONW'EAL H OF VIRGINIA. 

vs 

l4AXI!ilLIAN HI SC'. 

-----~--------- ----

. . .. 
: :BILL OF EXCEPTION 
• • 
• • 

_ .. ., ... "' 

BE IT RKMEKBERED that on the ttial. of this ca.ee 

after ali of the testimony on behal of the Commonwealth and 

on behali" of the accused had been introduced, the Connnonweai 

prayed the Court to instruct the jury as follows: 

The Court instructs the jury chat murder in tile 

first degree is any ilfuJ.l, deJ.iberate and pram ditated kill• 

ing ith malice aforethought. 

the second degree. 

All other murder is murder in 

Every unlawful homicide is presumed b the la 

to b urder in the second agree. If the Commonweal th would 

elevate the offense to murder in the first degree, she must prove 

the characteristic• of the offense; and if the prisoner would 

reduce the offense, the burden of pro r is on him.. 





.... 
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The Court instructs the jury that to constitut~ 

wilful. deliberate · nl premeditated killing, it is not necesso.ry 

that tre intention to kill shoul.d exist for any articular 

l,ngth of time prior to tre actual killine: it is sufficient 

if such intention come into existence for the first ti. me a.t lhhe 

tl. e of such killing or any time previously. 

The court instr cts the jury that mans aughter is unlawful 

killing of another without malice, either express or imp1ied. 

The difference e •Neen the crim s of murder and ma.. slaughter 

consists in this, that manslaughter, where voluntary, ari·es 

fro11 a sudden beat of passion, murder from the wickedn s 

of the re·~rt • 

-4-

lice aforethoueht is any formed esign of doing 

mischief, whether arising from hatred and revenge against 

deceased, or per.erse malignity and depravity of heart 

in general. 

:B!xpress malice consists in a deliberate purpose 

to t--~ke the life of #,...per on slain or to do him some bodily 

harm,the intention being ascertained from external circum-

stances, as by l.ying in w~i t • antecedent menaces, orrner 
flu_ 

grudges,~ a.tt #ndent cir ns tances, &c. 
mplied me,lice is ~ny evil design in gen ra~-nd it 

-2-
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means that the circumstances manifest a wicked, de rave and 

maliencit s_ rit, regariless of social duty nd deliberatel 

bent on mischief. 

Voluntary manslaughter is the unl~,wfu illing 

of another without malice, express of implied, upon a sudden 
;,.._ u., 

heat arising on a reasonable provocation or a:mutal combat. ,. 

-6-

7/uif 
In order to justi:y homicide on the ground 

it is committed in self defens , it must be sho n 

that the accused, a.t the time he caused the de, th of the 

deceased, was acting 1nder a reasonable belief that he was in i 

nin nt danger of death or greu. t bodily har:n from the dee ee.ae4, _, 

and t_~t it a n ces ary for the accu8ed to strike the fat~l 

blow in order to evoid death or great bodily harm which was 

a~rar ntly innninent to him. And the Court further instructs 

the jury that tre necessity relied upon to justify the 

killing of another must not ise out of the prisoner's 

own misconduct. The accused must .. ot bring on the difficulty. 

-7-

The court ins true ts the jury that where the 

~ccused pleads self defense, the burden of proof rests upon 

t the accused.to sustain such plea by evi.den ce to the satisfac­
fon or the Jury. 
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The Court instructs the jury that where there 

is a uar el between tNo rsons, oth ing in fault, and 

combat as a result of such quurr 
r:#-~l.J 

in or er to reduce tne"'- killing 

Akes place and death ensues, 
)'\ 

defense the prisoner 

~ust prove two things: first, tha before the mortal blow 

W"'S gi,ren, he declined further combat and retreated as far as 

he cold with safety: and, secondly, that he necessarily 

killed the deceased in order to preserve his ovm life or save 

him~el from reat bodily harm. 

The Court instructs the jury that the question 

whether, uncter all the circumstances, there was ground for 

a reasonable belief in the min,l of the accused that a 

necessity existed fr xu taking~ the life of the decease 

or of inflicting upon the head of the d.ece".sed a he::tvy blow, 

is one for the determination of the jury, and th( jury are 

un arrive at their conclusion under all the evidence in the 

ce.se. 

-10-

The Co rt nstructs the jury that if they 

believe from t e evidence that an assa lt was made by the 

deceased, Louis Isaacs, u_on the accused ithout a weapon and 

apparently c using peril of a mere indignity to the person 

of the accused or a mere b· tt ry from hich great bodily har 

could not reasonably have been apprehended, such assault by 

s id ~saacs did not excus resistance by the o..ccused to the 



r • 



... 

extent of taking the life of the said Is a.cs, even though 

such peril ould not have been escaped by retreat or though 

the ·hnger to the accused by r'""t- eat wouln. h ve been increased. 

(See Honesty vs. Conunonvrn&.lth 81 Va. 283). 

11. 

The Court instructs the jury tht if they 

believe from the evi~ence that the accu ed met Louis Isaacs 

and his wife on the street on the evening of July 29th,1909, 

and that upon Mrs. !sacs asking the accused concerning his 

having cursed her chi d, the accused struck at her and that 

thereupon her husband struck the accused, and that the accused 

then threw a rock at Louis Isaacs and that Isaacs the. followed 

the accused into the road and that either while t.e ace sed 

and said Louis Isaacs w re then enga ed in mutual combat or 

~ile said Louis Isaacs was atta~pting to assault or assaulting 

said accused with his fists, the accused struck said Isaacs 

a violent blow on t e head with a deadly weapon, thereby 

fracturing the skull of said Louis Isaacs so tht he died there­

fro on the 30th day of July, 909, nd that at the time said 

f~tal blow was made, the ccused did not reasonably apprehend 

tat he was in im..~ediate danger of death or serious bodi y 

harm from said Louis Isaacs and that it a not re~.sonably 

appear to the accused necessary then nd t~ere to use he force 

an u -riolence of the lo .i:ct u o_ the head 

of Louis Isa~cs, and 'f he jury further believe from t e 

evide ce that in inflicting s 0 id fata 'olow the accused id 

so t:rough ~lice towards said Louis Isaacs nd intenQing either 
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o 11 or do serious bodily hann to Isaacs, then the accused 

is guilty of murder in the second degree, and if the jury 

b iev from the evidence in addition to the m~~ tters above set­

ort t· t in nflicting s i f~ t".l blow the accused wilfully, 

deliber.,tely and premedits.tely killed the said Louis Isaacs, 

you wi l find t~e accuse guilty of ruraer in the fist 

degr1;;:e. 

A dea· ly we pon is any weapon or instr ent 

wh c from ·ts natur and 

is likely o produce death. 

e manner of its se by the accused 

-18-

The Court instructs the jury as a 1 tter of law 

that t ... ey are not to go beyond the vi,' ence to hunt up doubts , 

nor are they to en terta.in such oubts !ls <>re merely chi erico.l 

or conj ectun .. l. A reasonable doubt must be b~sed upon the 

eviuence, or on the aboence of evidence essential to proof 

of the guilt of ~he accused. It must not be an arbitrary 

doubt without evidence to sustain it. It must be serious 

and substantial in order to ::i.rr;tnt an acquittal. It must 

be doubt of a mat~ri2l fact or facts necessary for the jury 

to believe t0 find a verdict f conviction anr- ot of im• 

material and nonessential circumstances. 

-19-
The Court nstructs the jury that in arriving 

at a verdict n this case, they are the sole judges of the facts 

and of the credibility of the itnesses and of the weight to 

be given to the evidence or any part of it. When witnesses 
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testify opposite to each, the jury is not bound to regard the 

weight of the evidence as evenly balanced, but they have a 

right in determining the weight to be given to the testimony 

of v ri s witnesses, to take into consideration their intereit 
A 

in the result of the case, if they have any, their relation­
Or 

ship to the parties invol,red, their feeling c:c:£. bia.s, if 

any is shovtn, their appearance and demeanor on the witness 

stand, their apparent intelligence, the reasonableness 

or unreasonableness of their statements, thei merms of in­

formation and all the surrounding circumstances appearing on 

the trial, and to give or deny credit to the testimony of any 

witnes as 1 under the circumstance~ 1they may deem proper or 

to such extent as they think proper. 

To the granting of which instrumions and each 

of them the accused by counsel objected, but the Court over­

ruled the objection and granted said instructions and each 

of them, Numbered 1 to 11, inclusive, and 18 and 19, to 

hich action of the Court i1 granting said instrutions and each 

of them, numbered 1 to 11 incl1sive, and 18 and 19, the 

accused excepts and tenders this his Bill of E&ception No. 4 

which he prays ma,y be signed, seale and enrolled and made a 

part of the record which is accordingly done, th s he ~ 6 ~ 
day of October,1909,a.nd within thirty d s next g,fter th 
adjournment of said Court. 

Judge of the 
of . ocki righam 

SEAL 
Gourt 

aunty, Vi re;inia. 
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VIBCI1IA. 

IU THE CIR ·rT COURT OF O KINGHAM COUll'l'Y. 

O',rMOJ.fil.;AL' H OF VIRGDaA. 
BILL OF EXCEPTIOl 

vs 
.i: o. 2. 

MAX Jil,IA T HI SCH. 

BB IT RE' " BER] that on th trial of this 

case and after the Co111".Tlonwealth had introduced its 

evidence in chief, and had offered evidence tendine 

to ·how threats or. he part of the accused against 

the decease, t e accused t C d 

father, a ,ri tncss in his le.half, a.nd th ,reupon the 

foll v.-ing questions v1ere ropounded a d "t.he follov!ing 

answers iven, as ap e, rs from tl~e Certificate of 

Evidence, in Bill of Exception To ( rirhi ch Bill 

is 

of I~cention No. is hereby made a part hereof, 

and to ·'hich reference is hereb' specially m"l.de),: 

place: 

I will a.sk yo ,upon the occasion, ~r. 
Hirsch, just before hristuas, 11...en ou went 
to see your son-ir.-law, (r. Isaacs, ou had 
a conv rsation wit 1 i1r1 wit:. reference to 
the r~lations hich exiAted betleeD our son 
Hox Hirsch, upon the one and, and 
in-law Isaacs, u on the othc , nd ,Lether in 
that convers tion any anintosi ty vrns ex reseed 
by .J.r. Isaacs towards our son fox ? 

A. s sir. 

Just state hat that convereation ~s, 
what he said? 
A. 'ell, rent p --

And thereu on the following proceedings took 

-1-
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l~ffi.COHRAD: I object. 
after. 

don't know what ou are 

MR. H.AMHER: I am going to lead u:p and sho threats 
upon the part of the deceased. 

THE COUR'.i:: my not ask hlm if he ever heard any 
threats. 

L • HA: mn: Your Honor will recall that ffr. 
Conrad asked 1rs. Isaacs abou the re­
lations that existed between her hus­
band and the other m~nbers of the 
f 9.TTlily. ''le have a right to go into 
that matter; it is right to ask this 
question upon the theory that it will 

show the feelings that existed bevneen 
the deceased and Mox Hi sch. 

THE COURT: The ruli q of the Court to that objection 
if there is one, is that the objection is 
sustained. 

Exception noted to ruline of Court 
for the accused. 

B MR. SIPE: 
Please state whether,in the conversation to 

which ~ou have just referred, the deceased 
Louis Isaacs , made treats or xpressed 
any animosity towards your son, lox Hirsch, 
and, if so, state what he said? 

rn. COlffiAD: There 3,re two questions there and 

MR. LEE: 

T COURT: 

I object to either one of 1,hem, until the 
have made out a pri na facie case of self­
defense. 

We contend t:i-1a t there has been ample 
evidence introduced in t~ is case, both by 
the witnesses for the pro ecution and by the 
witnesses for T.lr. Mox Hirsch, to make a 
prima facie case of s f-defense, and to 
allow us to introduce this evidence. 

I thi r'{ I will allow you to ask the 
question. 

,Jow, Mr. Hirsch, pleaoe state what was said 

in ha con7ersation? 

Iiffi. CONRAD: You mean communicated threats? 

SIPE: [y purpose is to do that. I am 
doing it with t.he best of faith • 

• CONRAD: I just asked you whether he was 
goi rg to testify to COf'lrnunica.ted or 
uncornrnuni nted threats. 
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A. r.t..y sor-in-law, Lo Isaacs , had insulted my 
two little girls --

Q.. Tell what the conversation was. 

THE CO R'l': No; you cannot tell the con-
versation. If Isaacs used any 
threats against Maximilian 
Hirsch you can tell it. onfine 
your answer to that. 

A. Yeo sir; that night he said he would kill 
the damn son-of-n.-bitch. 

Q. id you tell -ox Hirsch about that? 
A. I did sir. 

rn. 1,E.E: Do I understand your Honor :to 
hold the witness cannot telate 
what passed between himself and 
Mr. Isaacs? 

TEE COURT:rot on exa.'lination in chief,but 
on Cross-examination I think ·ou 
could go into all the circum­
stances. 

MR. LEE: No use for us to show the 
threat unless we can show the 
Jur th condi i s er ich 
th threa s made so hey 
can und rstand the circumstances. 
Vii thout stating anything as t9 
what Mr. Ludwig Hirsch v.rill 
testify, for I do not know that, 
suppose that he would testify 
he went to his on-·n-law,Isaacs, 
for the purpose of brirwing about 

a reconciliation, and, after that, 
had been met ith that cl1aracter 
of response fro.n Isaacs, dontt 
your Honor think that would be 
relevant testi ony in chief, 
shedditg light upon the character 
of the threat made? 

'l'HE COURT: As I understand,there is 
nothing before the ourt. 

Q.. I will ask this question, but don't answer it 

because the Court will probably not :permit it to be 

answered• ow, Mr. Hirsch, please state under hat 

circumstances t e threat was nade by 1r. Isaacs,and 

what conversation i riedia.tel preceded the otatement 

of that t~reat by r. Isaacs? 

Objection; sustained; exception for 
the accused. 



,, 
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THE CO R11 :I am .f:Oing to let the witness ansrnr 
that question, after the jur has 
retired, for the purpose of being ruled 
on, and ou c~n nut i~ the record what 
you expect to prove. 

(Jur· retir d from court-room) 

Q,. :.:r. Hirsch, if I have used any language or 
expressi ns in that question which you do not 
understand, if you mnt, I will explain it. 

I wish you would explain it, please sir. 

When I said 'p·~ecedinu' I -n.ean the lan uage 
that ir-1.nediately went before the statement that 
"fJ. e ad • 

A. On the night that I went up there there 
was some trouble between him and 'Crry _ irls. He 
insulted ny girls. He sa'd he would .ick rny 
littlP- daughter - her name is Julia - he would 
kick her out of the house. That hurt my feelings 
very bad. I ,e nt up there to see him about it 
and told him, Is s, "Lou, if --n.y little children 
does ·ou any insult or does anything wrong to you, 
it is your place to come tJ Ee and I o~ld co~rect 
them riuht before your face, and he says, "N9, I 
•1ill kick then out. And its God damn equal to 
you, if you come in my house; and if that God damn 
son-of-a- bitch fox Hirsch comes into ny house I 
am gain.., to kill him. 

Q,. T at is t. e l:;i, t ti,ne ou had any conver a ion 
:vi th :v1r. Isaacs? 
A. Yes sir. 

THE ORT: We are not trying the case now, 
Jr. ipe. The objection to the intro­
duction of this testimony is sustained, 
and you save th. point on that rulin~. 

,.m. LEE: Of cour e we save the point. 

"E~m: Court adjourned until 9 : 30 to narrow 
,'lornirw. 

to the 1i.n oduction of which evidenc the Com'"'lonwealth 

objected and the ourt sustained the objection and 

refused to per.nit the evid; ice aforesaid to eo to the 

jury, to which ruli :1..;, and action of the ourt in sus­

tain· ng the objection of the ominornvealth,as aforeoaid, 

and in refusing to permit the evidence aforesaid to go 

to the jury, the accused by counsel excepts and pra s 

that this his Bill of Exception To. 2 may be signed, 

sealed, enrolled and :nade a part of the record, which is 
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ac ordi n~l , d ne, .is the of October, 

190 ~• and within thirty da s next after the dj ournnent 

of s id Court. 

the ircuit Court of 
n. County, Virgini_a. 

EAL 
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VI GI GA. 

IN T IE CI ClJI 'l' COUR'l' OF ROCK I HG HAM COUH'J'Y. 

~:s , 1909. 

0 1IO /l ◄ ALT. 0 IHGI ,IA: 

VS :BILL O}' EXCEP.1.IO I. 

MAXIMILIAN HIHS CH. ro. 3. 

BE IT REME,IBERBD 1;hat or the ,rial of 

this c se, during the delivery of 1.he testino11 on 

behal of the accused, the Co,nrn nweal t asked 1·or 

and obtained perCTission to recall D.E.Cr ushorn, a 

witness who had been previously examined on b half 

cf the 

of the denut:y sheriffs, and tha he was guarding 

fux Hirech from two or three o'clock on the morn­

ing of July the 30th,Hl09, at rich time he had a 

conversation with hi , and which th i tness de-

tailed; and thereupon after the uitness had been 

exa:. ined in chief and had been cross-examined on 

behalf of the accused touching said conversation, 
~t.-.....,;)~ 

as appears fro the evi df'nce as certified in 

"' ill of :E;x p ion II b (which ill o ep ion 

i her y ade a part 1 ere f and. t 

which reference is hereby specially made , a.s 

if fully set forth herein), he witneso, in ans re 

to a question by counsel for th accused answered 

as follo~s: 

11 Then he (referring to the accus d) says: 
I had been to church'; he ( ref rr · ng to 
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accused 
exci tea.. 
now' • " 

says:' I wasn't the le st bit 
I was just as cool as I am just 

And thereupon the foll wing question wa 

propounded to the witness by counsel for the accused: 

Q. That in, when he came from church and 
met these people, he wao just as cool 
a he was then? 

And thereupon the following colloquy ensued: 

m. CO RAD: I object. 
ar wnent. 

hat is for 

THE CO RT: 
;"\ 

las ther anything more said? 
'-' 

ITrES I don't think there was anythi1 g 
more that I rec llect now. After 
he told me that I cautioned him again. 
I didn t want to hear a rything about 
it. 'Don t talk to me about it. and 
he aid, "All right". 

And thereupon the following q estions were pro­

-pounded by counsel for the accused, and the following 

answers eiven by the witn ss: 

XQ.. And that wns the end of the c nversation? 

A. Yes si . 

XQ.. rha t he did say to you was I He had just 
been to church and was coming from church 

a11d was l)erfectl cool at the time? 
A. He says, 'I just came back from church', 

he says, I rasn't the leas bit excited. 
I was j u.~t •1.s cool as I am now. ' 

X~• That is all he said? 
A. That ·s all he said that had any oig-

ificance at all. I bel'eve he did 
sa he hadn t t been in n1uch trouble ex­
cept a c uple of little W.'.l.rrnnt trials. 
I believe he ~old me that. 
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And thereupon, u.pon re-direct examination by 

t e attorney for the cornmonw alth, the following question 

wa propounded to the witness: 

Q. The lar~uage he used about being cool, to 
what was he referring when he s'lid he had 
jut com from church and as as cool as 
he was at the time he was talking to you? 

To the propounding of which question th 

accused by c unsel objected, but the Court overruled 

the bjection and permitted the itness t answe ,and 

his answer is as foil ws: 

"In v· ew of the conversation we had I too'· 
it to mean that e meant whe t e rage 
happened he was just as cool as he was then. 
I cannot give the lan~uage w both used 
bet, en ·s there, but jud ing from it, I 
took i that tha is ,hat he meant". 

And thereupon ·he accused by co nsel objected 

to the Courts action in permittir~ the answer f th 

witness to go to the jury, and ~v d the Court to strike 

out the sarne, which motion the Court overruled. o whi nh 

action and r'lling of the Court in overrulin the objections 

of the accused and per~ttting said question t be pro­

pounded and ermitting the witness to answer the oa e, 

as aforesaid, and to which ruline and action of the 

C urt in refusing to strike out the answer f t e vi t­

ness to the question aforesaid and p r 'li tting said answer 

to re~1ain in evidence, the ac ... u ed by coun"' 1 excepts, and 

_ rays that tr-is his ill of Exception :ro. 3 may be r.igned, 

sealed and enrolled, ar,d made a -part of the r:ecord, 't'hi ch 

. d · 1 "') J..• 1 ~ 19 acc_or _ing Y_ don, this he~-- day of October,1go9., 
and n thin th1:r-ty says next after the adj ourr nent of said 
Court. tJ 4 It 

________ t,=--"-/.:__1/J ,. /~----- SEAL 
Judge of the CircuitCourt of Rock­
ingham Count , Virginia .• 
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VIRGINIA. 

IN THE CIRCUI'f COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY. 

1909. 

CO:'L'f01RVEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

vs 

1"1:AXI MI LI HIRSCH. 

BILL OF EXC."B.'PTION 

NO.l. 

Be it remembered that upon the trial of 

this case and durirg the delivery of the testi,nony on 

behalf of the Comma nweal th, the Corn.mo nweal th i 1tro duc­

ed as a witness in its behalf ~rs. Arthur Hirsch, a 

sister of the dec,ascd and a sister-in-law of the 

accused, and during her examination, as setforth in 

the evidence as certified in Bill of Exceptions #6 
(which Bill of EJ!:ceptions # 6 is hereby made a 

part hereof and to which reference is hereby specially 

made) inquired of the witness whether the accused. had 

been on bad ter s with Isaacs, the deceased, who stated 

that he was on bad terms·with the deceased from the 

d.a hat her brott.er and sister-in-law v: re married. 

Thereupon, on Cross-Examinatior., c unsel for th 

accused propounded theooquestionsto the i'litness: 

"You say Mox Hirsch has not been on good 
terms with your bro tl er? 
Arni: o sir. 

You have not been on good terms with any of 
the Hirsches, have you? " 

'l'hereupo n the following colloquy ensued 

between r.!r. Conrad, the Attorney for tl e Commonwealth, 

and ~r. Lee, of counsel for the accused: 

UR. C01 AD: That is not the question. This is not 
the trial of the Hirsch family,but it is 
the trial of ~ox Hirsch. 



', 
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MF. LEE: I simpl,y want to show the relation of 
the witness to the parties. 

THE COUR'.l': I expect you had better confine the 
testimony to the accused. 

MR. LEE: I want to 
ask a few 
rule them 
- ion. I 
evidence. 

show the animus. I will 
uestions and let your Honor 

out so I can take an except­
thir~ this is pertinent 

And thereupon the following proceeding took 

place: 

XQ. You married a son of Mr. Ludwig Hirsch? 
A. Yes sir. 

XQ, Vha t is your husband's name? 
A. Arthur Hirsch. 

XQ. How long has it been since you wererDn 
speaking terms with MiJx Hirsch? 

A. Let's see ! He stopped speaking to me 
before I went to house-keeping. That 
11ss four years ago last spring. 

XQ.. So you and Mox have not been on speaking 
terms for about four years? 

A. Yes, sir. 

XQ,. I am going to ask you if it is not also a 
fact that for a long time you have not been 
on speaking terms with Mox Hirsch's father, 
Mr. Ludwig Hirsch? 

A. Yes sir. 

X~. That is a fact, too, is it not? 
A. Yes sir. 

XQ.. You have not been on speaki rg ter s with 
him? 

A. Yes sir. 

MR CONRAD: 

MR. LEE. 

I want to object. 

I thought so. 

XQ. Now, don't a~swer until the f ntleman has an 
opportunity to object. Isn tit a fact 
that for a long time you have not been on 

sjeaking terms with you r brother-in-law, Mr. 
Leon Hirsch? 

Objection: sustained; except~on noted 
for the accused. 

-2-
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X~. Isn't it a fact that for a long time you 
have not been on speaking terms with any of your 
sisters-in-law, the daughters of Mr. Ludwig Hirsch'? 

Objection; sustained; exception noted 
for the accused. 

X~. Is it not a fact that for a number of years 
the relations between you and all of the Hirsch's 
have been strained and you have not been on speaking 
terms with the family? 

Objection; sustained; exception 
n~ted for the accused. 

It beir~ designed to show by the answe.rs of A/ . 

... 7c ~ ~ ~ ~ o...,-~ ~ / 

the witness to the foregoing question3,~and each of them, 

~e e"s.:jectioLa 'ig w1'1.ieh wwexe auat-e.1:n~, that the witness 

was not on speaking terms with Leon Hirsch, a brother of 

the accused; that she was not on speaking terms with 

her sisters-in-law, and the sisters of the accused,and 

that for a number of years the relations between the 

witness and the entire Hirsch family had been strained, 

she not being on speaking terms with any of them,in­

cluding Ludwig Hirsch, her father-in-law. 

But the court sustained the objection of the 

Commonweal th to said questions, and each of the 11, as 

aforesaid, and refused to permit the witness to answer 

the same, or either of them, to which ruling and action 

of the Court in sustaining the objection of the Common­

weal th to the said questions and each of the. , hereinbe­

fore· enumerated, and in refusing to pe it the witness 

to answerrthe same, the accused by counsel excepts. and 

prays that this his Bill of Exception No. l may be 

signed, sealed and enrolled, and made a art of the 
i) /.•lt­

record which is accordingly done, this the e5-:.y-

day of October,1909 1 and within thirt days next~ the ad-
journment of said Court. vi ?z. ~ SEAL 

Judge of the Circuit Court of 
Rockingham County,Virginia. 





The Court instructs the j'ul""J that althouah th~y 1:1.ey 

beli •':3Ve frorn t 11e evide 1c e that the def-er.d2.nt, while engaged in 

a personal co 1bat with the deceased, struck Mrs. Emma Hirsch, 

who had run between them, either r,u;,· ~o;:;ely or accidentally, 

they are not to consider th,t fact, if fact it l:ie:,,, in deter­

!l·rining the guilt or i:nnocei10e of the defeudo.nt in i, his case. 
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The Cot rt in tructs t L jury thr t in deter~1i;1ing 

01.~ le a prt:han iun t·· · L he wa:;; in danr~er of serious bodily harr1, 

and in ~~i~hlnR u d det~r ining the nat·~~ ad character of his 

acts at. that -ci.l1e, 'the.' shoul.d consider all the facts and c.1.rcur.J.-

stanc .... s, s,::; disclor,~cl by t'1 evidence, as t:i1ey may :reaso a.bl~r 

:rn.ve a1 ~ared to t· e d f ::YJ.ct.R-nt at the ti::'.1e he strt~ck t_.e nlow. 
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Instruction Fo. 

The ., nnrt. ins+.ructs the jur!' th, t r,h i.le t.l"' bur,ien of proof"' 

orne irhenever the evidence, w· 1et.ll13r o.;•:f~i"'Au ' 7 hir<1 o:- V1e 

G mnmon1 '8Pl th, c-7'.'e3t.es in the min<is o~· ti e jur!' a rea:=rnnable 

doubt as t.o whe ➔ her h, r-:t.ruc~}: j_n celf d~:fenff. ,or other·;ise. 
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Ini=; .ru tion ro. 
T:rn C"lnrt instrncts t1;.3 ;j11.ry that if unon all of t: e 

e ri.den ,.J ir:. this case t 1ey ente tain a rt:i[l~on~hle doubt aA to 

low· no.1:: ~ r ") sona­

ble ar,prP-:1ension that h~ ·•·~s in ir:1'ninent <lanu'ir o:f de~ t11 o-i:­

Be'l'.'ion c-; horl.iJ._r : arm, or for some other re son it i~ their :ut;,r 

trJ solve si.icl clrubt in favot' o the a1:c1ser1. 
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wit' -=i eonch1_sion t' 9.· t: 1 e hc·10cid.e ,as axcusabJ.e t e accused 

c 1 ot ll1;; on,ric.L ., of .ny of.fence. 
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Th C'ourt instructs th J ,i ry t?1at. if the~' ento:rt2.i': 

a reasona'.le d.oubt :-..S to vih t:-1er the deceased or the defendc.nt 

was th 3 ori, ·ina .. l a:r~ressor cc,nflict wi:.:.ch ensued -nd in 

it. is t',_3ir 'uty tu sol re 

s1.·c~1 doubt in :favor of t'r1e def ~.,..dant ~nd to co,sid.er t:1-.:, case 

just a.S thour-h the deceased was th.:: orip-inal aggressor and. co11.-

~itted ~he first assault. 



!, 



J'l'f.,. 
l 

'' .. 

. . . 

lieve fror'1 the 

t· e <.:eceased und,;;:r u rer~:c. <..ble ... _ · · ... tl1a-r, 
~? t'i:--;;) 't., v ""i, • }1,;" ~,t. .-,U.t/4 ,,, ...c 

of serious bodily h.r~ a+ the hands of t~e deceased, 
;'\ 

he uas xcu..,a'1le L so dcL __,, hou51 such de.ncer _ l.:t,/ ha-e b en 

unr al. he ,1 testi on for 'the jur~' in this casB is not wi ti7t.r 

~:-1r:: t.akir.c; of tho-~ ife o:i: the c .. ~ceased r:ri.·ht ·;..ve oe_n safely 

Dt_VOided, but whether t· .. ~ accused, under 211 
/ f • .l 

ie found : in::-elf urrounded~ , !i.r,. ~ 

of t 
I' 

circuns,.,anc s 

li3ved and d.id beliere it ecessarJ to use the defe11sive action 

v,r"..:..ch result~d in t.h.e deat:1. o. the ao.Jsailant in order to :1.void 

serious bodily h,~r • 





,•' .. 

If th-:: jury believe frOL'l the evldence that O!'l t!·le 

public streets of thl! '''o-.m of Harcisonourc, and was conducting 

himself' ir. "" lawful a.nrl ·-eacee.ble Ll.9.nner, ::.!1C.. was t11en a 1d 

t }1B:-:.:l asso. ul ted 1) :·' t:.e cleceased""i t:1en said. def ..:::ncL.nt h2.cl t "1.·:: right 
• ._ /YI,, ..,.. -t;"- tl., , ., " i (,$H<+-' "'1 • ...t .,..t.,.-..;t ~ v 

to re:;_ell l,· st..ch force 'asf11::: h~l:Levcu, and had r~Cl.EO'!to 
II '/ 7' I • • t\ ' ~ f ( ,v ' 

believe, (:«as) n acfis sar~r fo:r : is 0 1,.111 ~ rot ect iO~'l frou s er im.,.s 

1J0C:.ily :".lar.:n; a~d if, in t·1~ exercise of t isright of self­

defense, :J.s ass .... ilH.nt was killec',, such ld.lli:::ig was exc11s· •1le 

and ~:.:1 - jury s::1.ou ld f inc.. tl:e dcfe,.cl..,.,nt 1 ot :::;1.,.ilty. 
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T1e c~11..rt inst!'l).cts th'-'! jur.r t:.<1..t, although they :.ocy­

believ.e frou t:·1t, evide'Y1ce t~rnt t :1.ere was ill-feeling existing 

betv1een tne d. e f t:--:cl .... u t 

believe fr•o.·1 t·ie evide:·,ce, t1c...t w:hile t:"e def'i.;;.1dant was lawfully 

:,nd struck i'1 ";:11:3 face by the deceased., t:1.-m t:re &.ct o:f t.he de-

voe a ti on of the ,,J low rec1;i i:red l')y hlr:i., rat~ er t 0 1ar .. to the i revi­

ously exiEting ill-feeling. 
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a l-iace of 1lan1:, not rtriOL!...ly in his or;~"es~io'~, tut suddenly 



' 

. 

\, 

' ' . ' 
\ • I 

. 
;, 

f 



ki llint; of anot:'1.er in h--at of blood, upon 

strong :-rovoca.-'-inn and without ms,lice. 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMMITMENT FOR TRIAL. 

VIRGINIA, COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM---To-w1T: 

To the Clerk of the Circuit Court of said County : 

I, . ~ f If~ -/#t ... --~ the rea;e of said connty, do he.eby ee,·tify 

that I have this day committed .. .... 4'-'Y.. .. . ... . . . . ~ to the jail of ·aid 

county, that he may be tried before the circuit court of said county, for a felony by him committed, in 

this, that he, on the . .. :?-l,dcday~➔ . 
·--~-,L,UZ,v.lLA ____ ~ .. ~• ····-~A/~~~~-"7" 

. _/~ 
., 190 t ., in the said county, ~ 

~- ' 

Given under my hand ancl seal, this day of , 190¥- . 

k:-/-~---,~~ .. , J.P. [L. S.] 
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Instruction No. 

Th Court instructs the jur that the law pr,sumes v ry :p rson c11arg 

ed with orim to be innocent until his guilt is estahlish..,d by the 
n 

Commonwealth b yond areas able doubt , and this presumption of' ,. 
innocene goes witn the accus d through th ntir case and applies 

at every stag the:r·vof , and if' , after having heard all of the 

evidence in this case , the jury have a reaso~ahle doubt of th; 

guilt of the accused upon the whole case , or as to any -rac onsen-

tial to pr ve h oharge made against him in the warrant , it is 

their duty to give th prisoner the bene it of th d ult and find 

him ~ot guilty. 
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S, C. 160 1-7-10 500 

Qlommnnwealtq of ]Iirginia, 
TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME--GREETING: 

WHEREAS, a,t a Court held in and for the .ot..nt_ • of 

one thoiisand nine hundred and---.. ......... ~,...+----------------------

was convicted of-~..:..:...--'-J+-.-=-.="-'-'-',._._~,,_..c-_._,_,_..____ 

and was thereupon sentenced to be imprisoned in the~-n~:t~.n~n~t~·-o_"" .... !J~-------

for the term of-­ , and whereas it appears 

to the E.-recidive that he is a flt siibject for cleniency, 

THEREFORE, I, TV'.;J,J. HODGES Jl,fANJV, Governor of the Comrnonwealth of 'Virginia., 

have, by virtne of aiithority vested in 1ne, pardoned and do hereby pardon the said 

----""'""""'-'-'-"'-""'-""-=~-=-=---=--=c:..:.=..c-ancl do order that he be forthwith discharged 

from iniprisonment, bu,,t upon the tel'ms and co~1,ditions following, namely: 

That the said-­

future as a good, law-abiding citi;;en,· clnd if ever again he be found guilty of a 

viola,,tion of the penal laws of the Conimonwealth this pardon sha,ll be null and void. 

Witness: 

Given under my hand and under the lesser seal of the Commonwealth. al 

Richmond, tliis-

one tho1:1sand nine hundred an 

in the one hundred and thirty-

------- ay of 

-, in the year of our Lord 

--,and 

-year of 

the Commonweali')/j~ / 'ht 
- / /! , v1v ~ Vo - ~ 

·~~r//kf/// 
--------

¼ ~ /2 
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Executed the ~ithin ~arrant this the 3rd day of August, 1909, by 

arresting the within-named Maximillian Hirsch, and bringing him before 

Wm. J. Points, a Justice of the Peace of Rockingham County, Virginia. 

~ 

·-· 1 . . ", ' 
~ ~ I 

~ I ,,., g; CJ • I ,., ~ \ -t""' .... , 1, 

, .· 'l ._.., _, I" ..,, O'> 

r-_,, -­
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:"', • I 
~ r~.., ~ .-\ ,,, 

,...-,, ~ I 

C..::, r""I ..:. 
-, ' :.::> ~ ,.. ... 

_,,- ' -... _.., 
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~ 6~< Deputy for 

S. J. Carickhoff, S. R. C. 
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FELONY_ 

VIRGINIA: Rockingham County1 to wit: 
I, D. 1-l. LEE MARTZ, Clerk ef the Circuit Court ef Rockin,Jzam County, certify that 

~.~ .. k., ... £1 ..... ,{f?__ .. ~.~ ............................ attended under a summons as a witness before tlte Circuit 

Court ef said Comity,.~.~········· days at the .... L~ ................................ Term t/1ereef, in lite 

year one t!tousand 1tine hundred and .... ~ ........... , on behalf ef the Commonwealth, in her pros-

ecution againstlµ,.~.~ .. H.:..~ .. ~ .................. .for felony; said witness also traveled 

.... : ................................................ '!9t....v ........................ _nziles in co1ning to place of trial, and the sante in returning to 

/1is place of ab:Jde-from wludt distance so traveled I have deducled ten miles each way. leaving 

........................................................... miles as tlze distance traveled, for wlddt compe11safion is lo be made . 

Ile also paid tolis amo1t1tLing to ... -------= ..... Dollar and........................................................ Cents, 

for w/11d1 alfendq,w:....,mileage and tolls he is entitled to ........................... ~ .................... Dollar and 

.................... ~•················· .. ·········Cents, payable out.ef!he public treasury. 

On !he orrl!t of said . .tr."...f .... ff?. ...... ;{J_ .... f.S?...~ ............... , taken before me and 7flllic/1 I hereby 

cerlify, au entry ef the sum to wlticli he is entitled, and for what, has been made by me iu my effi.ce. 

~ ~ $7:;;:,,,,~l,anda, Clerk af,ma;d, 11,;,J~k~:i ;:,; 
Form-62-Berlin. 
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Commonwealth of Virginia, 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, To=wit: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF SAi D COUNTY : 

The jurors of the Commonwealth of Virginia, in and for the borly of the County of Rockingham, 

and now attending the said Co"" at its.: .... Q(}~············" ... tenn, in the yea. 190/ 

upon their oaths present that. ....................................................................................................... . 

~~~-~~ 
~ 

on the ......... ::L...<J. .'. ...... day of....~··················· ..... , in the yea, 100J., in the said County, 

airl .. :\n .. A. . . ll!1.o.n .. oni=~ ... Lou_t. .... -::.sa.:1..r:-.s .. t hBn.. . . .t h.e.r.e.. e _;_n.~., ... f'e.l.o. i: 1J".l.y , .. 
··::lf 1.ll: a::rid of is m1.li ,e ,g,C•?oretho .~1t, !1131,..e p.n assault; A.nd 
that the said Maxinillian Hirsch then and there fe1onio1mlv, 
ii.fiiru11,f···ana···or···h1s···,iai:ic·e···e-th.:±'·o·relhouiht····11rt····s'trikei···a:rict····heat····the······ 
said Louis Isaacs with a heavy ··:>iec of' oak timber i and u:9011 the 
h'eact···o1~·· ntm·~·····tn e····s·a1a····Lc5u1·s·····rr4aa····s····ana···d·~d····th·en····a:nd·--there····· ·eI6'·::::············ 
niouslv, '.'1 ilfully and of his malice ~orethoug t, c·.~,t qnd 
krro ·k····tn-e···uaid .. Lo · is-·Tn":l"iCR d01vn·to-·and· upon----th-o····· round···y ith··--gre-~t· 
~orce and violence, 'livine to the sqid Louis Isaacs then and there 
b-y .. •the•••Ba i l· he-at•i· tff ··•and--·str i lcine•··Of ··· r_.i:;-1,-•· ·t·h8··Haid· Louis····I·s-_ ae·A················ 
in the mqnner and for:n aforeRaid, a .ortal stroke, wound and bruise 
i.n .. and.up.o.n. ... the ... head .... o.f ... hin, ... th.e .... said.- ·-Louis .. -rsaacs.,., ... of .. mhi~•h .. said··· 
mortal stroke, "mund and bruise ne the said Louis Isqacs, in the Coun-
ty ... af oxe s.a1d 1 .... f.:r.o.-:n .... the. ... 29th ... da.y ... o.f ... ,lul, ..... in .. ·the . .year ... af.ox.es.aid ... .t.o .......... . 
the '0th dar of July in t~e year afores~i~, in the Cmmty aforcsqid 
~~J9.-... J.8.}1.K1.-:1.tf3-h ... ~D4 .... :i..a,,:r,,gg1~h:i.J1g .. i.<:t J:i,y$; ... 9.IJ ... '.Yh.tGh. $E!,J4 ... 3..0.t.h ... Q~Y .... .9.f 
July in the year 1S09, the ''-/, i.,ouis Is:=tacs in the County afore-
said of th., said mortal wour .... ()ke and bruise died. Pnd RO the · 
~,;-;;.·nti...-A.,..,.tf"r·;ftA•~;,· Oh ·t . •·· if6:fi3f.fitT~··to saj that··th'>saTd······ 
t·he····means··a:for . . e..1. . --::-'-0 

.. uuaon .?.lI c.11e 1118.!Iller and. 'b ;::::;.;..--..:. 
a..t'oret o .1 ht. 4. td kiil nd ro, ~ . UllV and ·or·;,, .,.. mr-itce ~· .... 

...,.. , 
l'I ,. ········· .... ·······----··········· 

against the peace a1 d a· · £ 
c 1 igrnty o the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

~ ..•......... ·_· ............ ., ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·., · · ....... Clerk. 
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VI RO/NIA: 

i7fn, //o cdty:;eJJio C(&c-flil oj"~y/ca-/4/ he,;{/ al 

!/4e ~t-~afJ/ ~ak/417? 111,, I Ito Cf€i;~-c/ 
<tfJt/c~?n-unc-l c;n ..,: !:) ... ,Y life 2:2 .... d 

-/.9tJ';). 

~ 1; i tio1 of ::a.-..cr.:.il ia .l ::irnch for ,_ \ rit of error 

o .cl su:_)ors eJ.eas to , . J 1 1 . er. t ren lere by t} o Circuit; ';ourt of 

9th cl ., o .(' Vt ob er, 19 C , L. 

tio .. 1y O!:lrlOl V:O P 1 ,j,.•., • .&. eni . . , I.I he said ~etitionc1, for a. 

felo 1y, whereby it was conri le e' )Y the .mi cl Court that t "iu • ai 

:·a.x1nilli ill 1.ir ch be confi:ne in the 3tate e .. i .. c ... t_;_ary for t. e 

, criIJt o: tho record of ;:.c j ule;-ue.1t afore.,aiu seen ant i1.:::;::::,octed, 

the \J ur · be.ii.~ 

dot1: ro ·· ect 

3e ea.s. 

,... ·' 
u -

.(' . . o ... 0~11non that 

eti tio· r,d refnne sLdo. ;r:'..t of error cl m per-
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If you find the prisoner not guilty you will say so and no more. 

If you find the prisoner guilty of Murder in the first degree. 

as charged in the indictment,you will say so and no more. 

If 1rou find the prisoner not guilt1r of murder in the first 

degree.but guilty of murder in the second degree you will say so 

and ascertain his punishment which shall be confinement in the 

Penitentiary not less than five years nor more than eighteen years. 

If ou find the prisoner not guil t.r of murder in the first 

degree,or second degree but guilty of voluntary manslaughter you 

will say so and ascertain his punishment which shall be confine­

ment in the Penitentiary not less than one nor more than five 

years. 

If you find the prisoner not guilty of murder in the first or 

second degree nor guilty of voluntary manslaughter.but guilty of' 

involuntary manslaughter you will say so and ascertain his pun­

ishment which shall be fine of not less than 5. 00 or confinement 

in jail,either or both. 

1 




